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Always There

Season 1
Episode Number: 1
Season Episode: 1

Writer:
Director:
Show Stars:

Recurring Role:
Guest Stars:

Summary:

Originally aired:

Monday April 22, 2013

Ray McKinnon

Keith Gordon

Aden Young (Daniel Holden), Abigail Spencer (Amantha Holden), J.
Smith-Cameron (Janet Talbot), Adelaide Clemens (Tawney Talbot),
Clayne Crawford (Ted Talbot Jr.), Luke Kirby (Jon Stern)

Jake Austin Walker (Jared Talbot)

Bruce McKinnon (Ted Talbot Sr.), Michael O’Neill (Senator Roland
Foulkes), Sean Bridgers (Trey Willis), J. D. Evermore (Sheriff Carl
Daggett), Johnny Ray Gill (Kerwin Whitman), Sonny Shroyer (Mayor
Johnny Daggett), Jayson Warner Smith (Wendall), Frank Hoyt Tay-
lor (Sheriff CJ Pickens), Kim Wall (I) (Marcy), Michael Traynor (George
Melton), Roger Edwards (Young Guard), Ron Prather (Lonnie), Ron
Clinton Smith (Correctional Officer Johnson), Orelon Sidney (TV Re-
porter), Tara Jones (TV Reporter), Russ Prine (Death Row Inmate)

A convict who spent 19 years on death row is released on a technicality
and returns to his Georgia hometown, where a senator wants to reopen
his case, and his sister worries about his safety.

Daniel Holden, met by lawyer Jon Stern,
mother Janet, sister Amantha, stepfather
Ted, stepbrother Ted Jr., and Ted Jr.’s
wife Tawney, leaves a Georgia prison after
19 years on death row. New DNA evidence
implies that 18-year old Daniel was not
solely responsible for the rape and mur-
der of his 16-year-old girlfriend Hanna,
as had been alleged during his trial. Sen-
ator Roland Foulkes says Daniel hasn’t
been exonerated and will still be pur-
sued by the law. Later, Roland meets local
officials, including Sheriff Carl Daggett,
and tells them to track down the primary
witnesses. The original prosecutor remi-

nisces how Daniel was found holding Hanna’s hand and speaking gibberish. He also recalls that
two witnesses, George and Trey, both testified that they saw Daniel placing flowers on top of
Hanna’s dead body. Sister Amantha drives Daniel around town and younger half-brother Jared
tries to bond with Daniel. A flashback introduces a Death Row inmate in the cell next to Daniel’s,
Kerwin. The two develop a friendship though they can’t see one another. Two witnesses, George
Melton and Trey Willis, meet in the woods. After Trey leaves, George shoots himself in the head.
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Sexual Peeling

Season 1
Episode Number: 2
Season Episode: 2

4 )
Originally aired: Monday April 29, 2013
Writer: Ray McKinnon
Director: Bill Gierhart
Show Stars: Aden Young (Daniel Holden), Abigail Spencer (Amantha Holden), J.

Smith-Cameron (Janet Talbot), Adelaide Clemens (Tawney Talbot),
Clayne Crawford (Ted Talbot Jr.), Luke Kirby (Jon Stern)

Recurring Role:  Jake Austin Walker (Jared Talbot)

Guest Stars: Bruce McKinnon (Ted Talbot Sr.), Michael O’Neill (Senator Roland
Foulkes), Jayson Warner Smith (Wendall), Kim Wall (I) (Marcy), Michael
Traynor (George Melton), Ajay Mehta (Mr. Patel), Hunter Ballard
(Teenage Prankster)

Summary: Amantha worries about Daniel’s safety as he explores the town and
Ted Jr. is concerned for the family business. Meanwhile, Daniel’s wel-
come home party causes tensions to run high.

#1 Daniel goes to a buffet and a driving
- range with Ted Jr., who’s nervous about
business at the tire store if Daniel comes
to work there. Daniel tells him about
getting attacked in prison. Jon tries to
halt his relationship with Amantha, feel-
ing it's inappropriate, but he fails. At a
family barbecue, Jon tells Ted Sr. that
state prosecutors will continue to pursue
Daniel. Tawney approaches Daniel and
the two discuss their favorite season be-
fore Ted Jr. gives Daniel a pornographic
magazine.
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Modern Times

Season 1
Episode Number: 3
Season Episode: 3

Writer:
Director:
Show Stars:

Recurring Role:
Guest Stars:

Summary:

Originally aired:

Monday April 29, 2013

Evan Dunsky, Graham Gordy, Michael D. Fuller

Nicole Kassell

Aden Young (Daniel Holden), Abigail Spencer (Amantha Holden), J.
Smith-Cameron (Janet Talbot), Adelaide Clemens (Tawney Talbot),
Clayne Crawford (Ted Talbot Jr.), Luke Kirby (Jon Stern)

Jake Austin Walker (Jared Talbot)

Michael O'Neill (Senator Roland Foulkes), Johnny Ray Gill (Kerwin
Whitman), Hal Holbrook (Rutherford Gaines), Kim Wall (I) (Marcy), Abi-
gale Corrigan (Claire), John Boyd West (Melvin), Robin Mullins (Judy
Dean), Linds Edwards (Bobby Dean), Madeline Taylor (Voice of Hanna
Dean), Dayo Abanikanda (News Cameraman), Tanner Keith (TV Re-
porter), Robert Oliver Norris (Skater 1), Jonathan Velazquez (Skater
2)

Unknown to her husband, Tawney reaches out to Daniel as he retreats
from the stress of recent events, while Amantha worries that the town
anger could soon get to boiling point.

Daniel deals with changes in lifestyle
brought about by two decades of techno-
logical development. Senator Foulkes is
dressing after a dalliance with the wait-
ress from the local diner. He tells the
waitress Hanna, the dead girl, was from
a family "without means” and that Daniel
was a strange teenager. The waitress tells
Foulkes that Amantha is in a relationship
with the family’s new lawyer, Jon. Daniel
retreats to the attic, where he finds an
old mixed tape from Hanna. He later goes
to a skate and bike park with Jared, his
half brother. Amantha is in a bar drink-
ing with Jon when a man asks if Daniel

is going to live at home she says she doesn’t know. Amantha tells Jon they have to leave the bar
and nervously tells him the man is Hanna’s brother, Bobby Dean.
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Plato’s Cave

Season 1
Episode Number: 4
Season Episode: 4

e ™)
Originally aired: Monday May 6, 2013
Writer: Graham Gordy, Michael Fuller
Director: Jim McKay (II)
Show Stars: Aden Young (Daniel Holden), Abigail Spencer (Amantha Holden), J.

Smith-Cameron (Janet Talbot), Adelaide Clemens (Tawney Talbot),
Clayne Crawford (Ted Talbot Jr.), Luke Kirby (Jon Stern)

Recurring Role:  Jake Austin Walker (Jared Talbot)

Guest Stars: J. D. Evermore (Sheriff Carl Daggett), Sean Bridgers (Trey Willis),
Johnny Ray Gill (Kerwin Whitman), Derek Wilson (Kent Benny),
Jayson Warner Smith (Wendall), Lara Grice (Susan Gunter), Sharon
Morris (D. A. Sondra Person), Graham Gordy (Pastor Beau), Adam
Fristoe (Lenton James), Faith Renee Kennedy (Alice), Keith Flippen
(Dr. Ingram), Bill Humphries (Corrections Officer), Sandi Shackleford
(Mrs. Atwood), Alicia Schulz (Barroom Girl 1), Caitlin Smith (Barroom
Girl 2), Claire Bronson (Boy’s Mother), Libby Whitemore (Fellow Shop-
per), Daniel Forbes Jr. (Heely Kid), Shelley Reid (Convention Presen-
ter), Marie Keefe (Reporter)

Summary: Trey Willis is questioned by the Sheriff about a missing witness, while
the media turn Daniel and Janet’s day in town into a circus.

A bird flies to its death by striking
a window, and Daniel and his mother
both observe this event separately with
barely a reaction. Daniel gets glasses
and goes shopping with his mom and
expresses amazement at yarn and flip
flops. Daniel’'s mom gets easily freaked
out by a TV crew that approaches their
car. Daniel’s lawyer Jon talks to the state
prosecutor, who says just because Daniel
is freed doesn’t mean he is exonerated.
Sheriff Daggett talks to Trey, the other

' ' ; witness in the original Daniel trial. After
hesitating, Trey estabhshes that he saw Daniel go into the woods with Hanna, but that only
George testified that he actually saw Daniel rape Hanna. Trey also reveals that he and other
people including an alleged adult had sex with Hanna. At a seminar out of town, a buddy talks
to Ted Jr. about getting out of the nickel and dime tire business and doing government contract
work because the "whole game is rigged” and he is also frustrated that online ordering services
are able to cater to minorities in his store’s area. Daniel visits Tawney at her church, where she
expresses shock that Daniel did not contemplate the afterlife instead of just preparing for the
moment of his death. Daniel takes Tawney off guard by referring to multiple books and philoso-
phers. Tawney pretends she understands Daniel’s references and turns the conversation back to
her faith in god and asks Daniel if he will get baptized. Daniel ends the conversation by hugging
Tawney awkwardly. Later back at home, Tawney gets a call from Ted Jr., who asks her what she’s
wearing. His wife awkwardly talks to him and then hangs up. On his walk home from Tawney’s
church, Daniel is looking at books inside a closed store and has a flashback of when prison
guards confiscated his books. A female acquaintance that knew Daniel before he was sent to

9
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prison engages him in conversation and offers him a free hair cut and tells her she had planned
to offer her body to him if she saw him again, but now feels foolish. Daniel says he would have
accepted her offer and she closes the store’s blinds.
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Drip, Drip

Season 1
Episode Number: 5
Season Episode: 5

4 \
Originally aired: Monday May 13, 2013
Writer: Ray McKinnon
Director: Romeo Tirone
Show Stars: Aden Young (Daniel Holden), Abigail Spencer (Amantha Holden), J.

Smith-Cameron (Janet Talbot), Adelaide Clemens (Tawney Talbot),
Clayne Crawford (Ted Talbot Jr.), Luke Kirby (Jon Stern)

Recurring Role:  Jake Austin Walker (Jared Talbot)

Guest Stars: Bruce McKinnon (Ted Talbot Sr.), Johnny Ray Gill (Kerwin Whitman),
W. Earl Brown (The Stranger), Jayson Warner Smith (Wendall), Robin
Mullins (Judy Dean), Rebecca Koon (High School Principal), Doug
Bertolini (Baptism Man), Sarah Peasall (The Peasall Band), Hannah
Peasall (The Peasall Band), Leah Peasall (The Peasall Band), Michael
Peasall (The Peasall Band), Jojo Peasall (The Peasall Band)

Sumimary: Daniel feels he is losing his grip on reality and takes a late night ride
of odd circumstances. As he grows closer to Tawney he agrees to a
baptism and Ted becomes more jealous.

In a flashback to his prison days, Daniel
sees an inmate deliberately crash his
bloody head against a window on his
cell door while leering at Daniel. Back in
his room at his mother’s house, Daniel
climbs out his window at 3:00 am to
embark on an odyssey. He first visits
Hanna’s home and watches the house,
seeing Hanna’s mother wandering inside.
Daniel proceeds walking until a truck
with a trailer picks him up. The person
driving the truck asks Daniel to help run
an errand, and the two go to a locked
barn and put a passel of goats in the trailer. The driver drives to a house and tells Daniel to
wait inside while he goes inside with one of the goats. Daniel falls asleep until daylight, and the
driver is watching him. He asks Daniel if he wants to see something strange. After leading Daniel
through a forest, the driver shows Daniel a statue of two females embracing, with the body of
goats. Daniel and the driver then wrestle each other until the driver wins. The pair return to the
truck, where the driver tells Daniel that he is about to go full circle and that beautiful things hurt
the most. Daniel sees an Airdancer and tells the driver to stop and let him out of the truck. As the
driver pays Daniel for his help, Daniel asks the driver if the driver is real. The driver laughs and
drives away, but notices the trailer is no longer attached to the truck. The airdancer is in front of
the family tire store. Daniel goes inside and talks to Ted Sr then wanders to his old high school,
where his half brother Jared and school officials come to check on him since the school knows
who he is. Meanwhile, Ted Jr. gets back home from a tire convention and grabs Tawney. Ted Jr.
gets mad when Tawney tells him that Daniel is going to get baptized. He goes to his stepmother’s
house and tells Amantha and Janet that Daniel is going to get baptized. After his baptism, Daniel
tells Tawney about the goat man incident, and then he tells her he is not sure about his belief
in God because he doesn’t know what is real right now, which distresses her, and then Daniel
inappropriately asks her if he can kiss her. Ted Jr. is drunk at the tire store and walks outside

11
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to turn off the airdancer, where he sees Daniel staring at it outside. Daniel asks him to leave it
on and Ted Jr. agrees and invites him inside the store for coffee. Ted Jr. confronts Daniel about
coming on to his wife, and tells him to stay away from both of them. Following this he questions
Daniel’s reasons for getting baptized, and asks whether or not Daniel resisted attacks during
showers at prison. Daniel replies by saying that it’s complicated and that there are things that
Ted Jr. doesn’t know. While Ted Jr. is making coffee, he begins to insult Daniel under his breath,
which Daniel hears. Daniel suddenly appears before him and puts him in a choke hold until he
passes out.

12
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Jacob’s Ladder

Season 1
Episode Number: 6
Season Episode: 6

4 \
Originally aired: Monday May 20, 2013
Writer: Ray McKinnon
Director: Ray McKinnon
Show Stars: Aden Young (Daniel Holden), Abigail Spencer (Amantha Holden), J.

Smith-Cameron (Janet Talbot), Adelaide Clemens (Tawney Talbot),
Clayne Crawford (Ted Talbot Jr.), Luke Kirby (Jon Stern)

Recurring Role:  Jake Austin Walker (Jared Talbot)

Guest Stars: Bruce McKinnon (Ted Talbot Sr.), Michael O’Neill (Senator Roland
Foulkes), Sean Bridgers (Trey Willis), J. D. Evermore (Sheriff Carl
Daggett), Johnny Ray Gill (Kerwin Whitman), Jayson Warner Smith
(Wendall), Kim Wall (I) (Marcy), Sharon Morris (D. A. Sondra Per-
son), Michael Traynor (George Melton), Robin Mullins (Judy Dean),
Linds Edwards (Bobby Dean), Lara Grice (Susan Gunter), Brian Bre-
mer (Chet), Adam Fristoe (Lenton James), Tom Turbiville (Cook), L.
Warren Young (Senior Guard), Kevin Wayne (Junior Guard)

Summary: Ted Jr reconnects with Tawney in the wake of his encounter with
Daniel. Sen Foulkes pressures the DA for a new trial to put Daniel
in jail again. Meanwhile the tension among the townspeople escalates
and Amantha moves in to her own apartment. Daniel continues in his
struggle to find peace with his freedom and faces the wrath of some
locals.

Ted Jr. wakes up from the choke hold on
the floor with his pants around his ankles
and coffee on his backside. Daniel makes
his way back to his mother’s house and
is in the kitchen with his mom and step
father when they hear a loud explosion.
Someone blew up the Holdens’ mailbox.
After gathering outside with the respond-
ing police, Daniel’s sister Amantha yells
at the local sheriff for suggesting that
Daniel leave town. Amantha’s boyfriend,
lawyer Stern, suggests Amantha gets a
gun for protection from local townspeople
that may wish Daniel and the Holdens harm. Tawney ignores Daniel’s phone calls. Daniel goes
to Amantha’s house and asks if they can go to the pecan grove where they used to go with their
father. When they arrive, it is the same area the goat man took Daniel to, only there is a different
statue there. Amantha suggests they leave the small town behind, and Daniel admits to Amantha
that he does not know what happened the day Hanna died. Daniel’s sister tells him he was high
on mushrooms at the time of the incident. A flashback to Daniel’'s time in prison has Kerwin
getting picked up for his death sentence. As they take Kerwin out, he asks to speak to Daniel
one last time, and he demands Daniel look at him. Grudgingly, Daniel looks out and Kerwin says
he knows Daniel didn’t kill Hanna. Daniel asks Kerwin how he knows, and Kerwin says he just
does. Prison guards escort Kerwin to his death and afterwards clean up Kerwin’s cell. Trey, the
surviving witness from Daniel’s trial, returns to where he met George a few days prior (in Episode
1). Trey discovers George’s dead body. He takes George’s wallet, and then pushes George’s body

13
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into the creek. Daniel visits Hanna’s grave while listening to Hanna’s mix tape. Two cars pull
up behind him and several men get out. They beat Daniel and the leader removes his mask, re-
vealing his identity as Bobby Dean, Hanna’s brother. While Daniel is laboring to breathe, Bobby
urinates on Daniel and leaves. While Tawney listens to a voice mail from Daniel that apologizes
for his behavior and tells her Daniel plans on leaving town, medics load an injured Daniel into
an ambulance.

14
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Running With the Bull

Season 2
Episode Number: 7
Season Episode: 1

4 \
Originally aired: Thursday June 19, 2014
Writer: Ray McKinnon
Director: Stephen Gyllenhaal
Show Stars: Aden Young (Daniel Holden), Abigail Spencer (Amantha Holden), J.

Smith-Cameron (Janet Talbot), Adelaide Clemens (Tawney Talbot),
Clayne Crawford (Ted Talbot Jr.), Luke Kirby (Jon Stern), Bruce McK-
innon (Ted Talbot Sr.), Jake Austin Walker (Jared Talbot)

Recurring Role:  Michael O’Neill (Senator Roland Foulkes), Johnny Ray Gill (Kerwin
Whitman), Jayson Warner Smith (Wendall), Kim Wall (I) (Marcy)

Guest Stars: J. D. Evermore (Sheriff Carl Daggett), Sean Bridgers (Trey Willis), Stu-
art Greer (Lid Comphrey), Linds Edwards (Bobby Dean)
Summary: Daniel’s family fears he won’t recover from his injuries and his attack-

ers will escape justice. Judy Dean shows Bobby some unexpected af-
fection. Ted, Jr. hides a shameful secret from his wife. Sheriff Daggett
investigates Daniel’s beating.

Daniel is visited by the ghost of Kerwin,
who tells Daniel to wake up.

At an Atlanta hospital, Amantha and
Janet panic as Daniel struggles to emerge
from an induced coma. Nurses rush in to
put him back into the coma.

While at the scene of Daniel's at-
tack, Lid tells Carl that a witness saw
a blue truck leave the cemetery. Carl
insists on finding the attackers despite
Lid’s warning that it will hurt his reelec-
tion chances.

e In the hospital waiting room, Tawney
asks Amantha and Janet about Daniel’s condition. She tearfully wonders why God would do this
to him.

At the police station, Sen. Foulkes tells Carl that the attack against Daniel might complicate
their case against his exoneration. Carl warns Sen. Foulkes that he plans to track down the
attackers.

Bobby Dean arrives home to find Judy Dean watching a news report of Daniel’s attack. "I love
you, baby,” she says.

Tawney visits Daniel’s hospital room, where Janet asks Tawney to pray for Daniel. Noting
Daniel’s affinity for Tawney, she reminds her that Teddy loves her more than anything in the
world.

During a flashback to death row, Wendell bangs on the wall to wake Daniel, who has fallen
into a depression since Kerwin’s execution. Wendell disrobes and tells Daniel that he was one of
the men who raped Daniel in the shower, and continues to masturbate as Daniel screams.

At the tire shop, Ted Sr. tells Teddy that Janet is upset that he hasn’t visited Daniel and
orders Teddy to pay a visit.

Carl stops by the shop to speak with Ted Sr. Teddy inquires about a tire bid, but Carl says
they lost out because of Daniel’s association with the shop.

17
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In Daniel’s hospital room, Amantha opens the present that Daniel left in her car before the
attack: It’s the ceramic mechanic from the tire shop. A nurse announces a visitor.

Amantha finds Melvin in the waiting room. He gives her a chocolate turtle for Daniel and tells
her she’s too smart to live in Paulie.

Carl and Lid visit Jake Johnson, Bobby’s friend and owner of a blue truck. Carl claims a
witness saw Jake and Bobby leave the cemetery. Jake says nothing.

Lid photographs Jake’s truck and deduces that Jake saw through Carl’s bluff about the wit-
ness testimony. Carl asks Lid if he interviewed the boys who had been at the crime scene, and
Lid says their mothers wouldn’t permit it.

Trey enters his shed and opens a locked metal box. Inside is George’s wallet, pistol and cell
phone.

At home, Teddy examines the area of his neck where Daniel choked him. Tawney catches
him inspecting his neck and asks him to hold her. He briefly embraces her then leaves for the
hospital.

Flashing back to death row, Daniel refuses to leave his cell. Guards storm the cell and force
him into handcuffs.

Teddy reluctantly visits Daniel at the hospital and spots the ceramic mechanic on a table. He
grips it tightly while glaring at Daniel. Amantha catches him mid-glare and they share an icy
exchange.

Daniel tells Kerwin he got off death row but admits his first week of freedom has been difficult.
"Everything out here is just so complicated,” Daniel says. "There’s so much pain and hate.”
Kerwin, overjoyed at Daniel’s release, encourages Daniel to appreciate his new life.

18
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Sleeping Giants

Season 2
Episode Number: 8
Season Episode: 2

4 )
Originally aired: Thursday June 26, 2014
Writer: Scott Teems
Director: Dennie Gordon
Show Stars: Aden Young (Daniel Holden), Abigail Spencer (Amantha Holden), J.

Smith-Cameron (Janet Talbot), Adelaide Clemens (Tawney Talbot),
Clayne Crawford (Ted Talbot Jr.), Luke Kirby (Jon Stern), Bruce McK-
innon (Ted Talbot Sr.), Jake Austin Walker (Jared Talbot)

Guest Stars: Linds Edwards (Bobby Dean), Jayson Warner Smith (Wendall Jelks),
William Betsill (Stevie Wages), Brandon Carroll (Craig), Stuart Greer
(Lid Comphrey), Richard Jackson (Benji Melton), Aaron Kirschnick
(Jeep Guy / Party Goer), Jane McNeill (Debbie Wages), Adam Mi-
narovich (Jake Johnson), Robin Mullins (Judy Dean), Ron Clinton
Smith (Senior Correctional Officer Johnson), Al Vicente (Dr. Norman
Ackborn)

Summary: With Daniel still in an induced coma, Janet and Amantha await news
of his condition; Teddy’s business plans take a hit; and Tawney deliv-
ers some unsettling news to him.

In a death row flashback, Daniel receives
a brochure of DOC mental illness guide-
lines. He angrily recites "proper prisoner
behavior” as he hurls and shreds his
books.

In Daniel’s hospital room, Janet re-
marks how friendly the hospital staff
is. Amantha reminds her theyre not
in Paulie, where everyone wants Daniel
dead.

At the Talbot residence, Teddy pro-
poses a plan to increase the tire shop’s
declining revenue by renting out tire
rims. Ted Sr. balks at the upfront investment costs. Teddy then brings up the elephant in the
room: What will they do if Daniel becomes a vegetable?

In his room, Jared listens to Daniel’s birthday mixtape on headphones. He replays Hanna’s
message, "I love you, Daniel.” Teddy interrupts to announce dinner is ready. Sensing Jared’s
kinship with Daniel, Teddy divulges that Ted Sr. saved the tire shop after Daniel’s reputation
drove it into the ground.

At a Life Group meeting, Tawney’s friend Kate commends Tawney for loving Daniel "like Jesus
would.” Kate admits to judging Daniel but acknowledges that she doesn’t even know him.

Tawney visits Teddy at the tire shop, where he’s working late, and asks him to come home.
He angrily explains that he’s working on an important business proposal and frets that Daniel’s
condition is worrying Ted Sr. to death. Tawney leaves him alone.

At the hospital, a doctor tells Amantha and Janet that they’re ready to wake Daniel from the
coma.

Bobby drunkenly stumbles out of a bar. Jake corners him and yells at him for endangering
their anonymity during Daniel’'s attack by removing his mask. He orders Bobby to get his act
together.
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Carl asks Debbie Wages if he can interview her son, Stevie, who witnessed Daniel’s attack.
She refuses.

Jon visits Hollis, a client who’s about to be executed after DNA proved him guilty. Jon offers
to stay with Hollis for his last meal.

At home, Tawney admits to Teddy that Daniel had wanted to kiss her and that she had
feelings for Daniel. "Will you forgive me?” she asks. Teddy kisses her on the cheek but leaves
without answering.

Trey visits Mr. Milton, George’s father, to ask if he’s heard from George. Mr. Milton says they
haven’t spoken since he called George "a queer” a couple of years ago.

On the phone with Amantha, Jon says Hollis conned him into believing he was innocent. "You
wanted to help a man, Jon, there’s no fault in that,” Amantha says. "I love you,” they reveal to
each other.

At the station, Stevie examines a group of mug shots and identifies Bobby as Daniel’'s as-
sailant. Carl thanks Debbie for allowing him to question Stevie.

Guards escort Daniel back to his death row cell. Wendall taunts Daniel and screams at him
to wake up.

At the hospital, Daniel’s eyes flutter open as he awakes. Janet runs in and Amantha cries for
joy.

Carl arrests Bobby at his house.

Ted Sr. calls Tawney with the good news. She tells Teddy, who’s hiding out in the bathroom,
pretending to use the toilet. He flushes and says nothing.
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Charlie Darwin

Season 2
Episode Number: 9
Season Episode: 3

( )
Originally aired: Thursday July 3, 2014
Writer: Chad Feehan, Coleman Herbert, Scott Teems
Director: Stephen Gyllenhaal
Show Stars: Aden Young (Daniel Holden), Abigail Spencer (Amantha Holden), J.

Smith-Cameron (Janet Talbot), Adelaide Clemens (Tawney Talbot),
Clayne Crawford (Ted Talbot Jr.), Luke Kirby (Jon Stern), Bruce McK-
innon (Ted Talbot Sr.), Jake Austin Walker (Jared Talbot)

Guest Stars: Michael O’Neill (Senator Roland Foulkes), J.D. Evermore (Sheriff Carl
Daggett), Stephanie Astalos-Jones (Dotty), Jill Jane Clements (Karen),
Kimberley Drummond (Alesha), Linds Edwards (Bobby Dean), Ian
Gregg (Mike), Dan Hildebrand (Hollis), Marin Miller (Gretchen Geer),
Robin Mullins (Judy Dean), Ray Stoney (Louis), Victor Turner (Correc-
tions Officer), Tim Ware (Dr. Perlmutt)

Sumimary: Still recovering from his injuries, Daniel makes a startling decision.
Amantha is outraged by Daniel’s choice and hurt when Janet takes his
side. Teddy asks Janet for help and ends up forced into an awkward
situation with Tawney. Bobby Dean has an unexpected conversation
with Sheriff Daggett. Jon Stern gains a valuable, but disturbing insight
into a client’s case and Daniel bends a few rules.

Daniel sees a tree branch fall in his
neighbor’s driveway. He walks outside
and stares intently at the limb.

Amantha frets over Daniel, who is still
weak from the attack. Daniel mentions
how much he misses the fritters from the
local bakery. Amantha insists on getting
some.

Janet tells Ted Sr. that she wants to
renovate the kitchen with Daniel. She
bristles when he says they don’t have
enough money.

: LB : At the bakery, the cashier tells Aman-
tha she s glad that Bobby was arrested Amantha s jaw drops at the news.

Tawney suggests a date night with Teddy, who has been cold and distant. He brusquely
agrees.

At home, Amantha tells Janet that Bobby was arrested. Janet receives a call from Carl, who
asks to stop by and question Daniel. Amantha and Janet see Daniel revving the car in the
driveway.

Janet brings a fritter to Daniel. He tells her he wants to drive the car but Janet suggests he
get his license first. She then asks if he’s willing to talk to Carl. Daniel agrees.

At the bank, Teddy applies for a loan for his rim rental business. The loan officer requires
Janet’s signature, since the tire shop is in her name. Teddy offers to put up his house as collat-
eral. The loan officer says he needs Tawney’s signature.

When interviewed by Carl, Daniel denies that Bobby was his attacker.

Carl tells Janet and Amantha about Daniel’s denial. Amantha insists Bobby was the attacker.
"You think I don’t know that?” Carl says, frustrated.
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Amantha angrily yells for Daniel. Janet tells her to let him be.

In a flashback, a doctor stitches up Daniel’s forehead following his fight with the death row
guards. The doctor recommends that Daniel put in a request for anti-depressants.

In the attic, Daniel puts his high school belongings into a trash bag.

At a diner, Jon orders Hollis’ last meal.

Tawney hesitantly looks over the loan paperwork and asks Teddy for more details about his
business plan. He snaps that she doesn’t know enough about the tire business to understand.

Daniel throws his belongings into the outdoor trash bin and sees his neighbor inspecting the
fallen limb. He offers to help move it but stumbles from the exertion.

As Amantha and Janet ponder Daniel’s motivations for lying about Bobby, Jared walks in and
says he heard about Bobby’s arrest.

The neighbor sees Teddy pull up to the Talbot residence and asks him to help Daniel back
into the house. Daniel starts to tell Teddy about his attempt to kiss Tawney. Teddy interrupts
and tells Daniel to rest.

Teddy pulls Janet aside to propose his business plan. Janet distractedly says she’ll agree with
whatever Ted Sr. decides, then goes to the kitchen, where Amantha is yelling at Daniel. "You can’t
let him get away with what he did to you,” Amantha shouts. Daniel says accusing Bobby would
accomplish nothing, then leaves. Jared calls his family a "bunch of freaks” and storms out.

Janet suggests Amantha go back to Atlanta and take some time off.

Jon brings the diner food to Hollis and asks why he lied. "I'm wired different,” Hollis says.
"Have been as long I can remember.” He adds that it was fun to pretend to be normal.

Carl releases Bobby from his cell and exhorts him to make something of his life. He says in
some cultures Bobby would be obliged to Daniel. "Not in this one,” Bobby responds.

In a flashback, a doctor gives Daniel antidepressants in his cell. "Salut,” Daniel says as he
downs the meds.

Amantha sits lost in thought at the bakery.

Judy Dean picks up Bobby at the station. Jared rides up on his bike and exchanges looks
with Bobby.

Tawney cooks macaroni for date night and looks at the loan paperwork.

Teddy zones out at a driving range.

Janet walks outside to find that Daniel has taken her car. Meanwhile, Daniel speeds down a
country road.
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Donald the Normal

Season 2
Episode Number: 10
Season Episode: 4

4 )
Originally aired: Thursday July 10, 2014
Writer: Kate Powers, Ray McKinnon
Director: David Lowery
Show Stars: Aden Young (Daniel Holden), Abigail Spencer (Amantha Holden), J.

Smith-Cameron (Janet Talbot), Adelaide Clemens (Tawney Talbot),
Clayne Crawford (Ted Talbot Jr.), Luke Kirby (Jon Stern), Bruce McK-
innon (Ted Talbot Sr.), Jake Austin Walker (Jared Talbot)

Guest Stars: J.D. Evermore (Sheriff Carl Daggett), Derek Wilson (Kent Benny), Anna
Enger (Joon Benny), Frances Fisher (Peggy), Kimberley Drummond
(Alesha), Ann McKenzie (Hazel), Gina Stewart (Anna Lewis), Jeremy
Sande (Rick), Morganna May (Stacy), Theresa O’Shea (Older Daugh-
ter), Edith Ivey (Elderly Mother), Drew Reeves (Homeless Man), April
Turner (Waitress), April C. Turner (Waitress), Ashley LeConte Camp-
bell (Store Manager)

Summary: A recovered Daniel explores Atlanta and enjoys a taste of big-city
anonymity, while Amantha starts packing up her apartment. Tawney
grows frustrated with Ted, Jr.’s ever-shifting moods, forcing him to
seek understanding from an unexpected quarter.

| Daniel takes a bus to Atlanta and wan-
ders through the streets, marveling at the
. hustle and bustle.

- A At home, Teddy lounges on the couch
j : in a disheveled state. Tawney asks why
1 he’s unhappy, even after she signed the

-l " loan papers. He explodes, saying he’s still
> upset that she had feelings for Daniel.

She leaves angrily. He guzzles a beer.

Amantha starts to pack for a move
back to Atlanta. Janet calls to invite her
to the movies and asks Amantha to stay
] . in Paulie.

Daniel gazes at a painting at a museum and is joined by another museum patron, Peggy. They
analyze the painting together. Daniel introduces himself as Donald.

Amantha orders a fast food burger and scarfs it down in her car. She watches a woman help
her elderly mother buckle in.

Peggy invites Daniel to join her and her friends at the museum cafe. Daniel tells them he
owns a bookstore in Alabama and then praises the café’s "palini” bread. Peggy quietly observes
his awkward manner.

Amantha shops for moving supplies at Thrifty Town. At the cash register, she sees a help
wanted sign and requests an application.

Daniel tells Peggy and her friends that Tobias Wolff's Bullet in the Brain helped him cope with
a difficult period in his life. The women get weirded out by Daniel and excuse themselves. Peggy
lingers and asks Daniel if he’s okay. She offers to stop by his bookstore next time she’s in Mobile.

Tawney arrives home to find Teddy drunkenly chatting with their friends Kent and June,
who've driven down from Hilton. Teddy starts the grill with Kent. June remarks to Tawney that
Teddy loves her very much.
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Wynn, the manager at Thrifty Town, interviews Amantha and emphasizes that she needs
someone long term. Amantha promises she wouldn’t quit.

Kent warns Teddy that a tire rim business could lose Teddy a lot of money. Teddy vehemently
disagrees.

Daniel visits Kerwin’s brother and mother, who greet him warmly. They reminisce about Ker-
win together.

Teddy pushes himself onto Tawney as she clears the dishes. She shoves him away then
softens, saying he just scared her. "So a convicted killer doesn’t scare you but your husband
does?” he sneers.

At a diner, Daniel is approached by a couple that recognizes him from the news. The man
takes a selfie with Daniel and chatters on about the "oddballs” he keeps meeting. "I don’t care
about your boring story,” Daniel says. He instantly apologizes but the man calls him an asshole.

Wynn calls Amantha to tell her she got the job.

Teddy stops by Carl’'s house and asks to discuss something in confidence.

Daniel arrives home to an empty house. He stares at the kitchen cabinets then proceeds to
empty them out.

Teddy tells Carl that Daniel assaulted him and awkwardly provides details of Daniel’'s "sick
lesson.” Intent on keeping the incident a secret, he says he won'’t press charges but wanted Carl
to know what Daniel is capable of. ”I know what he’s capable of,” Carl says. "I saw it in those
woods 20 years ago.”

At home, Teddy apologizes to Tawney for his behavior. "I'm glad you made it back,” she says.

Janet and Ted come home from the movies to find Daniel standing in the middle of a demol-
ished kitchen. "Oh my,” Janet says.
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Act as If

Season 2
Episode Number: 11
Season Episode: 5

4 N\
Originally aired: Thursday July 17, 2014
Writer: Victoria Morrow
Director: Andrew Bernstein
Show Stars: Aden Young (Daniel Holden), Abigail Spencer (Amantha Holden), J.

Smith-Cameron (Janet Talbot), Adelaide Clemens (Tawney Talbot),
Clayne Crawford (Ted Talbot Jr.), Luke Kirby (Jon Stern), Bruce McK-
innon (Ted Talbot Sr.), Jake Austin Walker (Jared Talbot)

Guest Stars: Sharon Conley (D.A. Sondra Person), Thomas Francis Murphy (Lionel),
Nat Padgett (James), Karen Wheeling Reynolds (Ginny), Leon Rippy
(Lezlie), Michael O’Neill (Senator Roland Foulkes), Sean Bridgers (Trey
Willis), Ashley LeConte Campbell (Wynn), Tina Parker (Karen), Jennifer
D. Taylor (Cindy), Christina Reynolds (Jennifer), Aaron Kirschnick
(Party Goer)

Summary: Daniel encounters an unusual local entrepreneur; Amantha struggles
with a new role; Ted, Sr.’s patience is tested; Tawney makes a decision.

Ted Sr. looks for his mug and coffee
maker amid the kitchen rubble. He sighs
in frustration.

Janet comes home with Daniel, who
just got his license. Ted Sr. lectures
Daniel for destroying the kitchen and im-
plements rules for the renovation. Janet
stands up for Daniel.

At home, Teddy apologizes to Tawney
for the way he’s been acting. "You can’t
get so angry, Teddy, itll consume you,”
she says. "Then it'll consume us.”

At the store, Amantha awkwardly
makes small talk with a customer. She
has trouble processing the customer’s
payment and summons Wynn by first name on the PA. Wynn asks Amantha to refer to her
as "manager” next time.

Ted Sr. finds Teddy setting up his tire rim display at the shop. Teddy tells him it’'s self-
financed. "You put up your house,” Ted Sr. realizes. Teddy reassures him it will be fine.

Daniel stops by an antique store for a new stove. Lezley, the owner, invites him to a party at
his house, calling Daniel "the loneliest person I've ever seen.”

Sen. Faulkes rebukes D.A. Person for considering a plea deal. She points out that their case
against Daniel is weaker due to DNA evidence and, with George Milton’s disappearance, a lack
of key witnesses.

Daniel, Janet and Jared play a trivia game while renovating the kitchen. Amantha shows up
to do laundry and mentions that Rutherford Gaines, Daniel’s original lawyer, died.

Daniel goes to the garage to process the news.

Amantha tells Janet she got a job at Thrifty Town. Janet is stunned.

Janet joins Daniel in the garage. Daniel sees her bike and asks why she stopped riding. At
Daniel’'s prodding, she reveals that she had an emotional breakdown on the day of her last ride,
when she learned that Daniel had been granted another stay of execution.
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Amantha finds Jon waiting for her outside her apartment. They hug.

Inside, Jon tells Amantha he got a job offer in Boston and asks if she would move there. She
agrees to think about it. They go to the bedroom to make love.

Teddy hums as he brushes his teeth. In bed, Tawney tells him she’d like to go to college. She
then reveals that her period is late. Teddy offers to buy a pregnancy test.

At home, Janet scolds Ted Sr. for treating Daniel harshly in his own home. Ted Sr. insists
Daniel is a grown man and says that it’s his home, too. "It was his home first,” Janet says.

Daniel arrives at Lezley’s hopping party but decides to leave. Lezley stops him and convinces
him to give it an hour. "Act as if you belong here,” Lezley says.

Lezley finds Daniel sitting alone and coaxes him into joining the party. "Any man reads a
newspaper know that Dan-with-a-D Holden is overdue for a little excess,” he reasons. He says
half the girls at the party want to sleep with Daniel, while the other half are scared of him and
still want to sleep with him.

A woman kisses Daniel on the couch and gives him cocaine, which Daniel snorts. Lezley stuffs
pot in Daniel’s pocket.

Outside, Lezley shoots CDs with a rifle then gives Daniel the rifle as the crowd chants Daniel’s
name. Daniel hesitantly takes the gun then sees something in the woods and freezes. Lezley
snaps him out of his trance then tosses a CD in the air. Daniel shoots it and stares into the dark
sky.

Nearby, Trey pokes around the river at the site where Hanna was killed and where George
committed suicide.
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MazelTov

Season 2
Episode Number: 12
Season Episode: 6

e N
Originally aired: Thursday July 24, 2014
Writer: Chad Feehan
Director: Jim McKay
Show Stars: Aden Young (Daniel Holden), Abigail Spencer (Amantha Holden), J.

Smith-Cameron (Janet Talbot), Adelaide Clemens (Tawney Talbot),
Clayne Crawford (Ted Talbot Jr.), Luke Kirby (Jon Stern), Bruce McK-
innon (Ted Talbot Sr.), Jake Austin Walker (Jared Talbot)

Guest Stars: Sean Bridgers (Trey Willis), J.D. Evermore (Sheriff Carl Daggett),
Aaron Marcus (Gaines’ Son-In-Law), Michael O’Neill (Senator Roland
Foulkes), Matthew Posey (Charlie the Chaplain), David Ramsey (Mr.
Burgdorf), Leon Rippy (Lezlie), Brooke Jaye Taylor (Darla), Frank Hoyt
Taylor (CJ Pickens), Kim Wall (Marcy), Tim Ware (Dr. Perlmutt), Red
West (Taylor), Suellen Yates (Gaines’ Daughter)

Summary: Daniel mourns the death of someone from his past, but his appearance
at the funeral fuels the fire against him. Tawney asks Ted Jr. to keep
a secret. When Amantha invites Jon Stern to a popular Paulie attrac-
tion, revelations ensue. As Janet’s birthday approaches, Daniel and
Jared try to tidy up the kitchen before the family party — until Daniel
is called away on a mysterious errand. Despite Janet's protests, her
family makes a fuss over her on her special day — and presents her
with several surprising gifts.

After partying at Lezley’s house, Daniel
wakes up naked in Marcy’s bed. Marcy
chats with him in the kitchen and kisses
him good-bye.

Daniel sees Trey at the gas station
and confronts him. They stare each other
down.

At home, Teddy reads Tawney’s preg-
nancy test and grins. "You're pregnant!”
he says, dancing around the room.
. Tawney asks Teddy to keep the news a

E ‘ secret for a while.
Daniel pulls into the driveway at home. The neighbor tells him another branch fell, this time
from a different tree.

Inside, Janet tells Daniel he was gone for three days and that she almost called the sheriff.
Daniel apologizes then asks to borrow $50, promising to pay her back when he gets a job.

Daniel attends Rutherford Gaines’ funeral. The crowd erupts in whispers when Daniel delivers
an impromptu eulogy.

After the funeral, Sen. Foulkes tells Carl that D.A. Person wants to offer Daniel a plea deal to
get the case out of her hair.

At the diner, Carl tells Sen. Foulkes about Daniel’s assault on Teddy. Sen. Foulkes calls the
news a "gift from the gods” and orders Carl to get Teddy on record.

Sen. Foulkes asks Marcy if he can visit her later. She makes an excuse.

On a date at the roller rink, Amantha tells Jon she’s no longer worried about keeping their
relationship a secret in Paulie. They kiss.
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In the parking lot, a woman asks Amantha and Jon to kiss elsewhere "so that we don’t have
to think about Hanna and what happened to her that night.” Jon confronts her about neglecting
the facts and failing to think for herself.

In a flashback, a chaplain visits Daniel on death row. Daniel broods in his cell.

While working on the kitchen demo, Daniel subtly lets Jared know that he’s aware Jared took
his Walkman and Hanna’s mixtape. He encourages Jared’s curiosity but warns him to be careful.
Jared reminds Daniel that Janet’s birthday party is at 2 p.m.

Using Janet’s $50, Lezley and Daniel buy a vintage Wedgewood stove from a widower. Daniel
expresses guilt for taking the man’s stove, but Lezley insists it hasn’t been used in years.

At home, Janet and Jared bake her birthday cake. Janet acts coolly toward Ted Sr., still upset
about his harsh words toward Daniel.

Amantha and Jon pull up to the Talbot residence. Amantha tells Jon it’s Janet’s first birthday
with all of her children and promises to be nice to everyone, including Teddy.

Amantha forces Janet to stop working on her birthday and drink some wine. Teddy and
Tawney arrive. Teddy congratulates Amantha and Jon for finally coming out as a couple.

An hour later, Amantha suggests they start dinner. Janet insists they wait for Daniel, who is
late.

The family chatters over dinner as Janet sits quietly, disappointed in Daniel’s absence. Daniel
finally arrives with Lezley and apologizes for being late.

Daniel brings Janet into the kitchen to reveal her birthday present: the Wedgewood stove. "1
thought it was what you wanted,” Daniel says when he notes Janet’s subdued reaction. Teddy
launches into the downfalls of owning a gas stove. Ted Sr. alleviates the tension by offering to
install it. Daniel and Janet smile.

Daniel thanks Lezley for his help and sees him off. He runs into Tawney in the kitchen and
expresses his gratitude for her support. "You made me feel, really feel,” he says.

From the living room, Teddy sees Tawney and Daniel sharing a moment. He abruptly calls
Tawney over and announces to the family that she’s pregnant. Janet leaps for joy. Tawney looks
over at Daniel, who leaves at the news.

In a flashback, the chaplain plays classical music for Daniel. Daniel touches the tape recorder
as tears stream down his face.

In the present day, Daniel walks to the spot where Hanna was killed and puts a hallucinogenic
mushroom in his mouth. He hears a woman’s voice whispering, "Daniel.”
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Weird as You

Season 2
Episode Number: 13
Season Episode: 7

4 )
Originally aired: Thursday July 31, 2014
Writer: Coleman Herbert
Director: Sanaa Hamri
Show Stars: Aden Young (Daniel Holden), Abigail Spencer (Amantha Holden), J.

Smith-Cameron (Janet Talbot), Adelaide Clemens (Tawney Talbot),
Clayne Crawford (Ted Talbot Jr.), Luke Kirby (Jon Stern), Bruce McK-
innon (Ted Talbot Sr.), Jake Austin Walker (Jared Talbot)

Guest Stars: Sean Bridgers (Trey Willis), Ashley LeConte Campbell (Wynn Lovass),
Sharon Conley (D.A. Sondra Person), Brendan Patrick Connor (Guy),
Kimberley Drummond (Alesha), Faith Renee Kennedy (Alice Willis)

Summary: Daniel continues to search for answers while Jon Stern has an enlight-
ening conversation with D.A. Sondra Person. Senator Foulkes forces
Sheriff Daggett to help him with an unpleasant task. Amantha bonds
with a coworker at Thrifty Town.

In a dream, Daniel stands in the forest
and watches a scene unfold around a
campfire. He’s joined by Trey and George.

Daniel borrows Jared’s bike from the
garage and rides off.

At home, Teddy asks Tawney if she’s
still mad at him for announcing the preg-
nancy to the family. He kisses her and
shares his excitement for the baby. She
kisses him back.

Daniel shows up on Trey's doorstep
and tells Trey he has no hard feelings.
Trey invites him inside.

Daniel asks Trey if he still talks to George. Trey says he hasn’t seen George in a couple of
years then suggests they drive down to Florida to visit him. He then says it was George, not him,
who implicated Daniel for Hanna’s murder.

Trey goes to his shed, retrieves George’s phone, keys and gun, and puts them in his duffel
bag.

At Thrifty Town, Amantha grows impatient with a customer and snaps. Wynn glares at her.

On the road to Florida, Trey tells Daniel about a dream he once had. He then says it’'s a waste
of time to find meaning in dreams — or anything. "So life’s meaningless?” Daniel asks. Trey
accuses him of twisting his words.

In the Thrifty Town parking lot, Amantha tells Alisha, her co-worker, that Wynn is mad at her.
Alisha hands her a blunt. They giggle as Amantha inhales and coughs.

Amantha takes Alisha on a tour of the tire shop and raids the vending machine after getting
the key from Teddy, who is amused by Amantha’s lighthearted mood.

D.A. Person meets with Jon to offer a plea deal of time served plus 10 years. Jon refuses to let
Daniel serve more time and points out that DNA evidence would be on their side in a trial. D.A.
Person holds her ground, saying she wants to end it "quickly and quietly.”

Trey and Daniel arrive at George’s empty trailer. Trey opens the back door with George’s keys
and offers Daniel some pills and liquor that he finds inside. "Like old times,” he says.

Jon tells Amantha about the plea deal. "They're offering a way out,” she realizes. "They don’t
think they can win.”
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Carl and Sen. Foulkes visit Teddy at the shop to convince him to press charges against Daniel.
Teddy refuses then says he made up the assault.

Despite Carl’s reluctance, Sen. Foulkes privately suggests they tell Ted Sr. about the assault.

In George’s trailer, Trey revisits the night of Hanna’s murder. Daniel says he doesn’t remember
raping her. "You didn’t even screw her, bud, you couldn’t get it up,” Trey says, revealing that he
and George watched Daniel flee after he failed to have sex with Hanna. Trey goes on to reveal
that he and George had sex with Hanna after Daniel left and guesses that Daniel killed Hanna
immediately after. Daniel angrily wrestles him to the ground. "I know you,” Trey says. "Now you
know you, if you ever really forgot.”
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The Great Destroyer

Season 2
Episode Number: 14
Season Episode: 8

4 \
Originally aired: Thursday August 7, 2014
Writer: Scott Teems, Ray McKinnon
Director: Billy Gierhart
Show Stars: Aden Young (Daniel Holden), Abigail Spencer (Amantha Holden), J.

Smith-Cameron (Janet Talbot), Adelaide Clemens (Tawney Talbot),
Clayne Crawford (Ted Talbot Jr.), Luke Kirby (Jon Stern), Bruce McK-
innon (Ted Talbot Sr.), Jake Austin Walker (Jared Talbot)

Guest Stars: Sean Bridgers (Trey Willis), Linds Edwards (Bobby Dean), J.D. Ever-
more (Sheriff Carl Daggett), Faith Renee Kennedy (Alice Willis), Robin
Mullins (Judy Dean), Michael O’Neill (Senator Roland Foulkes), Jayson
Warner Smith (Wendall Jelks), Frank Hoyt Taylor (CJ Pickens)

Summary: Daniel reluctantly asks for help. Janet sees the error of her ways. Jon
Stern reveals some startling news, triggering a heated family debate.
Jared turns to Ted, Jr. and Tawney for comfort. CJ Pickens offers some
unsettling information.

Daniel wakes up in George’s trailer and
finds that Trey has left without him. He
starts biking back to Georgia.

k .x 5 ‘: A / o \ Back home, Trey stumbles out of his
\ - w car with dried vomit on his face.
o Al } b - ———— Teddy skips breakfast at home due to

a busy day ahead. Tawney praises his

courage to start the rim business. After
g Teddy leaves, Tawney receives a collect

call from Daniel.

Janet apologizes to Ted Sr. for being
.+ .. hard on him and thanks him for saving
i e HELS I A vaii AR 1‘;‘,{ ! her and the house after Lester died. She
expresses guilt for losing hope in Daniel while he was in prison.

Tawney picks Daniel up in Florida and admits she’s never done anything so impulsive.

Amantha and Jon look for Daniel at home to discuss the plea deal.

On their way back to Georgia, Daniel tells Tawney he’s not a good person. Tawney refuses to
believe him.

Carl visits C.J., the sheriff who presided over Daniel’s murder case. C.J. admits that he and
Sen. Foulkes may have coerced Daniel’'s confession. He also reveals that he ignored a request
from George to speak after the trial was over.

While waiting for Daniel, Jon tells Amantha and Janet that all bets are off with D.A. Person if
they push back too hard on the plea deal.

Tawney drops Daniel off near Paulie. Daniel asks if she loves him. "I'm married,” she replies.
As he leaves, she declares that she can’t do this again.

At home, Jon informs Daniel about the plea deal and estimates he can negotiate the term
from 10 to five years. Amantha points out that Daniel would have to plead guilty. Daniel leaves
the room to take a bath.

Daniel lies in the tub. In a death row flashback, Wendell accuses him of being afraid to live.

Daniel rejoins his family in the living room and rejects idea of doing any more time. Jon warns
that the D.A. will probably kill the plea deal.
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Tawney greets Teddy at home as she prepares dinner.

After dinner, Daniel privately asks Jon for a copy of his taped confession.

Ted Sr. tells Jared that Daniel is discussing a plea deal with Jon. Jared asks why Daniel
would admit guilt if he didn’t kill Hanna. "It's a way to move on,” Ted Sr. explains.

Over dinner, Teddy inquires about Tawney’s whereabouts that day. She claims she ran er-
rands. Jared stops by with news about the plea deal. Upon hearing the news, Tawney excuses
herself to lie down.

In the backyard, Teddy and Jared sit in front of a fire. Jared wonders if Bobby will hurt Daniel
once he learns of the plea deal. "You're nothing like him,” Teddy says. Jared clarifies that he’s
not worried about being like Daniel.

In the kitchen, Ted Sr. counsels Daniel on the plea deal, saying Janet would be very happy to
have Daniel "in the free world, forever and always.” He steps out to take a call from Sen. Foulkes,
who asks to meet right away.

Jon leaves a voicemail for D.A. Person, rejecting the plea deal.

Jared hides in Bobby’s yard and sees Bobby drunkenly sob in his mother’s arms.

At the tire shop, Sen. Foulkes tells Ted Sr. about Daniel’s assault on Teddy. Ted Sr. goes home
and stares at Daniel’'s bedroom door.

Teddy sits alone in front of the fire while Tawney lies awake in bed.

In his room, Daniel arranges a homemade dummy on the floor while listening to his confession
on headphones. He strangles the dummy then abruptly pulls back.
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Until You're Blue

Season 2
Episode Number: 15
Season Episode: 9

4 N\
Originally aired: Thursday August 14, 2014
Writer: Victoria Morrow, Scott Teems
Director: Seith Mann
Show Stars: Aden Young (Daniel Holden), Abigail Spencer (Amantha Holden), J.

Smith-Cameron (Janet Talbot), Adelaide Clemens (Tawney Talbot),
Clayne Crawford (Ted Talbot Jr.), Luke Kirby (Jon Stern), Bruce McK-
innon (Ted Talbot Sr.), Jake Austin Walker (Jared Talbot)

Guest Stars: Michael O’Neill (Senator Roland Foulkes), Alan Heckner (Anderson),
Richard Jackson (Benji Melton), Mary Kraft (Barbara)
Summary: Recent events frustrate Ted Jr., while Ted Sr. attempts to protect the

family. Also, Daniel is faced with a tough decision; and Amantha tries
to sort some things out and lets off some steam.

From the kitchen, Ted Sr. glares at Daniel
in the backyard.

At the doctor’s office, Tawney learns
that she’s had a miscarriage.

Ted Sr. reprimands Carl for telling
Sen. Foulkes about Teddy’s assault and
putting him in the position of deciding
whether to tell Janet. He worries Janet
will never recover if she finds out.

Jon tells Daniel that D.A. Person is
willing to abandon the plea deal on the
. ') condition that Daniel leaves Georgia for-
A - - BN ever.

At the shop, Teddy calls a customer to inform him that his credit card was rejected for his rim
renewal.

At home, Amantha worries that Daniel and Jon are shutting her out of the plea deal discus-
sions. Janet reassures her that they need space. Amantha asserts that just because she’s not
"private” like Janet or Daniel doesn’t mean she is the "bad guy.”

At home, Tawney calmly tells Teddy about the miscarriage. Teddy asks Tawney if she’s in
shock, but Tawney says she’s fine.

Back at the shop, Teddy sits in his office, stunned.

Carl tells Mr. Melton that George is missing and that phone records placed him in Paulie six
months prior. Mr. Melton mentions that when Hanna was murdered, the police and Sen. Foulkes
interrogated George and Daniel without calling their parents.

Ted Sr. visits Sen. Foulkes and warns him never to contact him or his family again. Sen.
Foulkes acknowledges that while his motives in pursuing Daniel are political, he also believes in
his "heart of hearts” that Daniel killed Hanna and that Ted Sr. must have entertained the same
notion.

In a death row flashback, Charlie the chaplain brings Daniel a letter that Amantha wrote after
Daniel stood her up in the visiting room. She reminds him that the Daniel on death row "is not
who you are.”

Daniel stops by Thrifty Town to tell Amantha about the D.A.’s banishment clause. Amantha
denounces the terms, saying they would prohibit Daniel from visiting the family. Daniel reassures
her he hasn’t yet decided whether to accept the terms.
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At home, Daniel is unable to bring himself to tell Janet about the banishment clause. Instead,
he simply says he can’t live at home anymore.

Amantha tells Jon that they’re going to lose Daniel and criticizes him for telling a "broken and
reckless” Daniel about the plea deal.

While driving home, Teddy leaves another voicemail for the customer who hasn’t paid for his
rims.

At home, Teddy is thrown off by Tawney’s calmness and speculates that she never wanted the
baby in the first place. He bitterly tells her to sleep with Daniel. Sobbing, Tawney declares she’s
tired of their marriage. "Maybe you’ll get lucky,” Teddy replies. "Maybe he’ll kill you, too. Put you
out of your misery.” She leaves. He breaks down sobbing.

Tawney ignores an apologetic voicemail from Teddy and checks into a motel room. She drinks
wine and calls Daniel.

While guzzling beer, Teddy drives to a customer’s house and begins to remove the customer’s
tire rims. The customer discovers Teddy and they brutally fight each other.

Daniel arrives at the motel room. Tawney tells him about the miscarriage and asks if she’s a
bad person for calling Daniel just like Teddy predicted. They dance.
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Unhinged

Season 2
Episode Number: 16
Season Episode: 10

( ™)
Originally aired: Thursday August 21, 2014
Writer: Ray McKinnon, Kate Powers
Director: Stephen Gyllenhaal
Show Stars: Aden Young (Daniel Holden), Abigail Spencer (Amantha Holden), J.

Smith-Cameron (Janet Talbot), Adelaide Clemens (Tawney Talbot),
Clayne Crawford (Ted Talbot Jr.), Luke Kirby (Jon Stern), Bruce McK-
innon (Ted Talbot Sr.), Jake Austin Walker (Jared Talbot)

Guest Stars: Sean Bridgers (Trey Willis), Willie C. Carpenter (Turner), Sharon Con-
ley (D.A. Sondra Person), Linds Edwards (George Melton), J.D. Ever-
more (Sheriff Carl Daggett), Stuart Greer (Lid Comphrey), Dylan James
(Older Boy), Michael O’Neill (Senator Roland Foulkes), Michael Traynor
(Bobby Dean), L. Warren Young (Prison Guard)

Summary: Daniel has a problem accepting Jon Stern’s advice, while Tawney re-
thinks her options. Also, Ted, Jr. seeks a favor; and Amantha comes
clean to Jon Stern.

At the motel, Daniel wakes up in
Tawney’s arms and tells her he’s leav-
ing Paulie. She says she’s leaving too. He
then tells her that he assaulted Teddy but
doesn’t think Teddy deserved it.

Teddy leaves a voicemail for Tawney
to find out if she’s okay then looks for
Daniel at the Talbot residence. Janet,
sensing that something is amiss, asks
what’s wrong. Teddy tells her Tawney
miscarried.

Y _ Sen. Foulkes orders D.A. Person to ar-

A }‘ e 7 range a debrief with Daniel in order to ex-

tract a verbal confession. He contends that the judge will require a debrief before signing off on
the plea deal.

Carl looks for George at his trailer in Florida. Observing the mess left by Trey and Daniel, Carl
scoops up detritus from an ashtray and puts it in his pocket. He finds the note that Daniel left.

Jon urges Daniel to reject the plea deal and go to trial, confident that they would win the case.
Daniel insists on moving ahead with the plea deal.

Carl reviews security camera footage from George’s trailer park.

Janet visits Ted Sr. at the tire shop. He tries to tell her about Teddy’s assault, but is inter-
rupted by Janet, who assumes he’s referring to the miscarriage. She comforts him.

Carl recognizes Trey’s truck in the security footage.

In a death row flashback, Amantha visits Daniel to inform him that Justice Row is sending a
new lawyer. She is confident Justice Row will get him out.

Amantha encourages Jon to take the Boston job and leave her in Georgia. She expresses
doubts about their relationship and worries that they’ll always remind each other of Daniel.

Teddy writes a note to Tawney. Meanwhile, Tawney consults a Bible in her motel room.

In the kitchen, Ted Sr. confronts Daniel about Teddy’s assault and asks how they're going to
make things right and tell Janet. Janet overhears them and demands to know what happened.
Daniel informs her he’s taking the plea deal and will be forced to leave Georgia.
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On the security footage, Carl sees Trey leave the trailer park in his truck. To his surprise,
Daniel leaves later on his bike.

Amantha explains to Daniel that she didn’t just want to get him out of prison—she wanted to
clear their name. She warns that she will never contact him again if he admits to killing Hanna.

At home, Tawney tells Teddy she needs time alone. She then expresses sympathy for his
incident with Daniel. "He’s taken everything,” Teddy snarls as he realizes Tawney saw Daniel.
Tawney walks out with her suitcase.

Jared stops by Daniel’s room to say good-bye.

At the Paulie courthouse, D.A. Person debriefs Daniel about Hanna’s murder. Daniel asserts
that he never had sex with Hanna. He reveals that he saw Trey, George and Christopher have
sex with her and later found her dead. He then describes how Sen. Foulkes and C.J., the former
sheriff, coerced him into confessing. In private, Jon again urges Daniel to go to trial. Daniel
ignores his advice. When the debrief resumes, Daniel tells D.A. Person that he strangled Hanna.

Jon and Daniel wait outside as D.A. Person prepares the plea for the judge.

At the Dean residence, Jared sneaks into Hanna’s room, which still contains all of Hanna’s
belongings. Bobby discovers him and tells him to do them a favor and take anything.

At the station, Carl tells a colleague to run DNA tests on a business card that Trey gave him
and compare it to DNA from the detritus he found in George’s ashtray. Teddy walks in and asks
if it’s too late to press charges against Daniel. Carl calls D.A. Person.

A group of boys discovers George’s body in the river.
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Hoorah

Season 3
Episode Number: 17
Season Episode: 1

e )
Originally aired: Thursday July 9, 2015
Writer: Ray McKinnon
Director: Stephen Gyllenhaal
Show Stars: Aden Young (Daniel Holden), Abigail Spencer (Amantha Holden), J.

Smith-Cameron (Janet Talbot), Adelaide Clemens (Tawney Talbot),
Clayne Crawford (Ted Talbot Jr.), Luke Kirby (Jon Stern), Bruce McK-
innon (Ted Talbot Sr.), Jake Austin Walker (Jared Talbot)

Guest Stars: Adam Aalderks (Sheriffs Deputy), Ashley LeConte Campbell (Wynn
Lovass), Sharon Conley (D.A. Sondra Person), Michelle Flanagan-
Helmeczy (Gas Station Customer), Walter Hendrix III (Prison Guard),
Samantha Kacho (Mom at the Park), Kim Wall (Marcy)

Summary: For the first time since Tawney left, Teddy confronts Daniel, and later,
Sheriff Daggett informs Teddy of Daniel’s deal.

Shortly after deciding to press charges
against Daniel, Teddy learns from Carl
that the judge already signed off on
Daniel’s plea deal and that Daniel must
leave Georgia within 30 days.

At home, Daniel tells Ted, Sr. that
the deal is done. Ted, Sr. coolly declines
Daniel’s offer to help finish renovating the
kitchen.

D.A. Person asks Sen. Foulkes about
Christopher Nelms — one of the men who
had sex with Hanna on the night of her

: death, according to Daniel's statement.
Sen. Foulkes warns her against looking into Hanna’s promiscuity and uprooting the lives of
her alleged sexual partners.

Teddy prepares dinner alone in an empty house. He hears Tawney’s voice, but it’s just his
imagination. He dines alone.

Amantha meets Jon at a bar, still angry that he presented the plea deal to Daniel. He informs
her that the deal is done and that he’s fully moved out of her apartment.

Jared visits Claire, his ex-girlfriend, to vent about Daniel’s plea deal. "He gets to leave town
while the rest of us have to stay here and eat shit,” he says. She comforts him.

At home, Janet unpacks a bag of takeout food for dinner. Ted, Sr. advises against inviting
Teddy and Tawney to dine with them and Daniel.

That night, Ted, Sr., Janet and Daniel gather for a lonely dinner in celebration of the plea
bargain. Janet tells Daniel that the food is from Willy D’s, which she believes to be his favorite
BBQ restaurant. When Teddy stops by for an unannounced visit, she awkwardly realizes that it’s
Teddy’s, not Daniel’s, favorite BBQ joint. Over dinner, Teddy tells Daniel about the miscarriage.

Tawney dines alone at a diner and calls Miss Kathy to ask if she can visit for a few days. Miss
Kathy suggests the following week instead.

In private, Teddy accuses Daniel of telling Tawney about the assault so that he could put
his own positive spin on the story. He threatens to press charges if he finds out Daniel is with
Tawney.

At the coroner’s office, Carl shows George’s corpse to D.A. Person and tells her he will not
be conferring with Sen. Foulkes during his investigation into George’s death. He speculates that
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George may have committed suicide. D.A. Person reminds him that they must first find the gun
that killed George before jumping to conclusions.

Ted, Sr. finds Daniel sanding the old kitchen cabinets late at night and asks Daniel to refrain
from using the sander at such a late hour. He requests that Daniel tell Janet what he did to
Teddy and firmly suggests Daniel find another place to stay for the remainder of his time in
Georgia.

Divers dredge the river where George’s body was found but fail to find the gun that killed
George.

Over breakfast, Janet asks Ted, Sr. if he’s seen Daniel. Ted, Sr. says no.

Tawney stays at her friend Beth’s house. Beth confides that she and her husband saw a mar-
riage counselor after experiencing two miscarriages. Tawney doubts Teddy would see a counselor.

Janet stops by Teddy and Tawney’s house to drop off dinner leftovers. Teddy reveals that he
and Tawney are having marital issues. Janet apologizes for being unavailable to Teddy while
taking care of Daniel.

In a flashback, death row guards escort Daniel to the viewing room for the execution chamber.

Back in Paulie, Daniel reads a book at an empty playground and makes small talk with a
mother. He leaves when he notices her discomfort at his presence.

At Thrifty Town, Wynn informs Amantha that Peanut is returning from maternity leave but
says Amantha can keep her job if she pursues a managerial track.

Tawney calls Teddy and tells him she’s at Beth’s house. She reassures him that she only
told Beth about the miscarriage and nothing else. When she suggests a marriage counselor, he
ignores the idea and brusquely ends the call.

On death row, Daniel envisions himself getting strapped into the injection chair and meditates
on the details of his final moments — what his last words will be and whether Janet will watch
the execution. "Hell, it probably won’t happen again, just like last time, and the time before that,”
he says, calling it all a "game.” Weary of the game, he wonders if it would be better just to "get it
over with.”

Daniel visits Amantha to ask if he can stay with her. She agrees but admits she is frustrated
with him for not caring about things. "T'll try to try,” he promises.

At the diner, Marcy tells Sen. Foulkes that their relationship is over. Sen. Foulkes suffers a
stroke. Marcy dials 911.
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Thrill Ride

Season 3
Episode Number: 18
Season Episode: 2

( N\
Originally aired: Thursday July 16, 2015
Writer: Ray McKinnon
Director: Lawrence Trilling
Show Stars: Aden Young (Daniel Holden), Abigail Spencer (Amantha Holden), J.

Smith-Cameron (Janet Talbot), Adelaide Clemens (Tawney Talbot),
Clayne Crawford (Ted Talbot Jr.), Luke Kirby (Jon Stern), Bruce McK-
innon (Ted Talbot Sr.), Jake Austin Walker (Jared Talbot)

Guest Stars: J.D. Evermore (Sheriff Carl Daggett), Melinda Page Hamilton (Thera-
pist), Sharon Conley (D.A. Sondra Person), John Boyd West (Melvin),
Ajay Mehta (Mr. Patel), Ashley LeConte Campbell (Wynn Lovaas),
Ann Mahoney (Beth), Richard Jackson (Benji Melton), Ted Huck-
abee (Mitch Mitcherson), Lauren Emily Townsend (Peanut), Blake H.
Hughes (Terry)

Summary: Daniel tries to adapt to new circumstances; Amantha deals with over-
whelming personal and professional changes; Teddy seeks to connect
with Tawney.

Amantha wakes up late, hungover after
the bottle of wine she consumed the night
before waiting for Daniel, and frantically
dresses for work. She leaves Daniel alone
in her apartment.

Sensing that Ted, Sr. is hiding some-
thing, Janet prods him into revealing that
Daniel assaulted Teddy. She is stunned.

At the tire shop, Teddy gets unnerved
by the inflatable tube man and unplugs
it.

Tawney speaks to a therapist about
her marriage and growing up with her foster mother, Miss Kathy. She describes Teddy’s anger
issues, which make her feel "trapped,” and admits she felt relieved when she had the miscarriage.

Carl tells D.A. Person that he searched George’s trailer in Florida while investigating George’s
disappearance. She reprimands him for entering the trailer without a warrant — and in another
state, no less, which is out of his jurisdiction.

At Thrifty Town, Wynn introduces Amantha to Peanut, who is back from maternity leave. As
Peanut resumes her post at Amantha’s cashier station, Wynn asks Amantha to stock the shelves.

Carl tells D.A. Person that he found George’s wallet and cell phone in the trailer, even though
records show the cell phone was used six weeks ago in Paulie. He also reveals that Daniel and
Trey were recently at the trailer. D.A. Person orders Carl to dispatch a colleague to the scene
and forbids anyone from entering the trailer. She also prohibits him from pursuing any further
investigations without consulting her.

Daniel paces around Amantha’s living room in search of something to do.

At the tire shop, Ted, Sr. informs Teddy that Daniel moved in with Amantha. "Just thought
you might want to know,” he says, looking at Teddy with concern.

Jon looks for Daniel at Janet’s house and learns that he is now living with Amantha.

Daniel runs into his old friend (and Amantha’s landlord) Melvin at the apartment complex.
Melvin kindly offers to show Daniel how to do a load of laundry.
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Jon urges Janet to help Daniel, who has yet to find a new city and state to live in. He tells
her about the New Canaan Project, a non-profit organization that offers career and psychological
counseling for ex-offenders.

Teddy stops by Beth and Mitch’s house to drop off laundry for Tawney. Mitch intercepts him
outside and offers to give the laundry to Tawney when she returns. Teddy grows short with Mitch
and stalks off.

Carl tells Mr. Melton about George’s death and asks if George might have killed himself. Mr.
Melton says it’s possible but doubts George would have done it with a gun. He suggests Carl
investigate Trey, who was recently looking for George. "Something about it smelled,” he says.

Amantha stops by Janet’s house to ask why Daniel left. Janet refuses to discuss it.

In an attempt at being productive, Daniel tries to buy groceries at a mini mart but comes up
short in cash. The cashier suggests he would get "more bang for his buck” at a grocery store.

With the house to himself, Teddy drinks beer and blasts country music. Jared drops in for a
visit, surprising Teddy.

Amantha arrives home to find Daniel listening to classical music and preparing dinner. He
insists she relax while he cooks.

While eating the barbecue leftovers meant for Tawney with Jared, Teddy proposes they go for
a car ride. He grabs beers from the fridge and tosses his car keys to Jared.

Over dinner, Daniel tells Amantha that he got a job painting the swimming pool for Melvin.
Amantha briefly smiles but is quickly overcome by the stress of the day. "This is all very thought-
ful, Daniel, but I just can’t pretend that I give a shit,” she says, leaving the table.

Teddy guzzles beer and instructs Jared to drive to Beth and Mitch’s house, where they park
and watch Tawney through the dining room window. He tells Jared that he once pressured a girl
into having sex with him and urges Jared never to do the same. Jared assures Teddy he would
never do such a thing. Teddy recalls telling Jared that he was nothing like Daniel. "You ain’t
like me, either, and that’s a good thing,” he says. Jared sits uncomfortably as Teddy insists on
watching Tawney just a little while longer.
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Sown With Salt

Season 3
Episode Number: 19
Season Episode: 3

( \
Originally aired: Thursday July 23, 2015
Writer: Coleman Herbert
Director: Billy Gierhart
Show Stars: Aden Young (Daniel Holden), Abigail Spencer (Amantha Holden), J.

Smith-Cameron (Janet Talbot), Adelaide Clemens (Tawney Talbot),
Clayne Crawford (Ted Talbot Jr.), Luke Kirby (Jon Stern), Bruce McK-
innon (Ted Talbot Sr.), Jake Austin Walker (Jared Talbot)

Guest Stars: Sean Bridgers (Trey Willis), J.D. Evermore (Sheriff Carl Daggett), Rox-
ana Brusso (Lourdes Williams), John Boyd West (Melvin), Matt Lowe
(Perrie), Michael Vartan (Forrest), Myke Holmes (Hands-Free-Mike)

Summary: Daniel discovers that his plea deal comes with some new, unpleas-
ant restrictions; Daggett investigates George’s death; and Amantha at-
tends a Thrifty Town out-of-town management-training seminar.

At the police station, Daniel’s probation
officer outlines the terms of his probation
and hands him a urine cup for his first
drug screening.

In the hallway, Carl informs Daniel
that George is dead and asks to speak
with him in private.

In the men’s room, Carl notes that
Daniel seemed unsurprised by the news
of George’s death and proceeds to grill
Daniel about his visit to George’s trailer.
After stumbling over his replies, Daniel
refuses to answer further questions with-

out Jon present.

Janet asks Ted, Sr. to look into allocating some tire shop money to Daniel, reasoning that
Daniel would have inherited the store when Lester died. Ted, Sr. agrees then forewarns her that
he and Teddy are going to finish the kitchen renovation.

At a Thrifty Town management training retreat in Macon, a facilitator invites Amantha to tell
her fellow trainees a unique story about herself. She describes how she dedicated years of her
life to exonerating Daniel — only to have him plead guilty in a plea deal. "And now he’s living on
my couch,” she says tearfully.

Daniel vacuums the pool to prep it for painting. Melvin asks if he has picked a place to live and
suggests he at least pretend to pick a place. "I'm not used to deciding on anything. Postponing is
more my strength,” Daniel says, unable to entertain Melvin’s inquiry.

Tawney stops by the house to pack some clothes. Teddy surprises her in the bedroom, despite
telling her he would be gone. He agrees to see Beth and Mitch’s marriage counselor but loses
interest when Tawney reveals that she’s already begun seeing the therapist on her own.

Carl questions Trey about his visit to George’s trailer. Trey suggests that Daniel might have
wanted to hurt George for testifying against him at the rape trial. He further tries to incriminate
Daniel by quoting him as saying, "George ain’t coming.”

Teddy tells Tawney that he thinks Ted, Sr. knows about Daniel’s assault. Tawney suggests
they see the therapist together after all, saying he needs to talk to someone. "You don’t mean
that,” Teddy says and orders her to leave.
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Trey tells Carl that Daniel attacked him while in a trancelike state. He speculates that Daniel
planned out the entire night, from suggesting the visit to George’s trailer to pushing pills on Trey.

Janet finds Teddy and Jared helping Ted, Sr. with the kitchen. Teddy insists he’s not trying
to “take over anything,” but Janet graciously thanks him for helping. Having overheard Ted,
Sr. grumble about costs, Janet tells him to get vinyl flooring instead of her more expensive
preference, wood. "I don'’t really care,” she says tersely.

In a flashback, Jon visits Daniel in prison to tell him that he’s finally getting out of prison.
Daniel cries for joy but predicts it will be hard on Janet to have him back after emotionally letting
him go.

Amantha ditches the Thrifty Town karaoke night and hangs out at her hotel bar. Forrest, a
businessman staying at the hotel, flirts with Amantha and buys her a drink.

Daniel returns to the police station to be questioned by Carl — with Jon in tow. "No surprises
this time,” Jon says. Daniel reassures Jon that he told him everything.

In his office, Carl interrogates Daniel about his trip to Florida and his attack on Trey. He
reveals that Daniel’s fingerprints were found on George’s wallet and cell phone, prompting Daniel
to surmise that Trey wiped them clean. Daniel admits to having a temper but denies killing
George. At Carl’s prodding, he discloses that Tawney picked him up in Florida and that he told
her about assaulting Teddy. Blindsided by the news about both assaults, Jon stops the interview.

Amantha tells Forrest about exonerating Daniel. "You are impressive, Amantha Holden,” he
says admiringly.

In his car, Jon angrily tells Daniel that assaulting people could land him back in prison.
"Would that be so bad?” Daniel asks. Jon urges Daniel to give his new life a chance.

Amantha and Forrest kiss in the elevator. She invites him to her room.

Daniel gets to work and starts painting the pool in the middle of the night.
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Girl Jesus

Season 3
Episode Number: 20
Season Episode: 4

4 )
Originally aired: Thursday July 30, 2015
Writer: Scott Teems
Director: Scott Teems
Show Stars: Aden Young (Daniel Holden), Abigail Spencer (Amantha Holden), J.

Smith-Cameron (Janet Talbot), Adelaide Clemens (Tawney Talbot),
Clayne Crawford (Ted Talbot Jr.), Luke Kirby (Jon Stern), Bruce McK-
innon (Ted Talbot Sr.), Jake Austin Walker (Jared Talbot)

Guest Stars: J.D. Evermore (Sheriff Carl Daggett), Sean Bridgers (Trey Willis),
Sharon Conley (D.A. Sondra Person), John Boyd West (Melvin),
Melinda Page Hamilton (Therapist), Roxana Brusso (Lourdes Williams),
Michael O’'Neill (Senator Roland Foulkes), Kim Wall (Marcy)

Summary: A visit from his probation officer cause work problems for Daniel;
Tawney is pushed into making a painful confession during couples’
therapy; Janet gets upset with Ted Sr.

Marcy visits Sen. Foulkes at the hospital,
where he’s recovering from the stroke and
barely able to speak. She makes an effort
to help him, and he holds her hand. But
she gently removes it and leaves.

Sheriff Daggett summons Trey to his
office to ask him the color of his truck.
He "casually” mentions that George’s se-
men was found on Hanna’s underwear
and gauges Trey’s reaction. In response
to an earlier question about Daniel’s at-
tire in Florida, Trey says that Daniel had

EE!
been wearing a jacket.

Amantha meets Jon at a BBQ joint and learns that he’s staying in Paulie to help Daniel.

Daniel’s probation officer visits him at the apartment complex after she’s unable to reach him
by phone. She warns him to take his probation seriously, starting by keeping his phone on him
at all times and submitting his overdue housing form by 5 p.m.

Tawney listens to a voicemail from Carl, who asks to speak with her about Daniel. She meets
Teddy outside Rebecca’s office and they enter together.

In therapy, Rebecca asks Teddy to talk about himself, starting with his childhood.

After telling Amantha about George’s death, Jon says that George’s old testimony against
Daniel gives Daniel a strong murder motive but adds that Trey, too, seems to be a suspect in
Carl’s investigation. Amantha thanks him for helping Daniel.

In therapy, Teddy explains that his addict mother left his family when he was young. When
asked if he’s close to Janet, he says they were close until Daniel returned. "Her real son came
back and things changed considerably,” he explains. Teddy accuses Tawney of thinking about
Daniel and implores her to tell the truth for once. After Tawney admits to having doubts about
their marriage, Teddy expresses relief that he wasn’t imagining her ambivalence.

Daniel stops by Thrifty Town to have Amantha sign his housing form. She insists he take her
car in order to meet the 5 p.m. deadline.

After therapy, Tawney tells Teddy about Carl’s voicemail. She reveals that she picked Daniel
up in Florida — near George’s home, Teddy quickly realizes. In a panic, she seeks Teddy’s advice.
He counsels her to simply tell the truth.
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Daniel arrives at the social services building minutes before 5 p.m. As an officer escorts him
down a hallway, Daniel has death row flashbacks to being escorted down a prison hallway in
shackles.

The probation officer takes the form from Daniel and says she’ll see him next week.

At the station, Tawney tells Carl that she and Daniel solely discussed “spiritual matters”
when she picked him up in Florida. "I feel any sin he has committed is far surpassed by the
sins committed against him,” she says. She also tells Carl that Daniel was not wearing a jacket,
contrary to what Trey had told the sheriff.

Daniel stops by the empty Talbot residence and takes some clothes that Janet recently bought
for him. He wakes up from a short rest to find Trey in the house but is unsure whether Trey is
real. As Trey leaves, he remarks that Daniel will never get his lost prison years back.

Teddy meets Tawney outside the police station. She reassures him that nothing will ever
happen between her and Daniel. He offers to drive her around until she’s ready to return to
Beth’s house.

D.A. Person tells Carl that only seven kids were interviewed on the night of Hanna’s murder
even though a much larger group had been rounded up. She also says she procured the warrant
for George’s trailer. Carl reports that George’s last credit card purchase was a round-trip bus
ticket to Paulie. He surmises that Daniel did not kill George but notes that Trey’s behavior is
suspicious.

Janet asks Ted, Sr. if he ever questioned Teddy about his own role in Daniel’s assault. Ted,
Sr. defends Teddy and refuses to apologize for being protective of him.

Amantha arrives home to find Daniel sitting forlorn on his bed. Daniel says he once thought
he was in love. "I thought she was my savior,” he says, referring to Tawney.

Janet tells Ted, Sr. that she’s going to sleep in Amantha’s room.

Teddy pulls up to Beth’s house and comforts Tawney as she cries. She kisses him then gently
pulls away.

That night, Daniel stares despondently at the empty pool. He drags out the paint to finish the
job but then intentionally knocks a can of paint all over the pool. Tears fall down his face.
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The Future

Season 3
Episode Number: 21
Season Episode: 5

e A
Originally aired: Thursday August 6, 2015
Writer: Ray McKinnon, Kate Powers
Director: Nicole Kassell
Show Stars: Aden Young (Daniel Holden), Abigail Spencer (Amantha Holden), J.

Smith-Cameron (Janet Talbot), Adelaide Clemens (Tawney Talbot),
Clayne Crawford (Ted Talbot Jr.), Luke Kirby (Jon Stern), Bruce McK-
innon (Ted Talbot Sr.), Jake Austin Walker (Jared Talbot)

Guest Stars: J.D. Evermore (Sheriff Carl Daggett), Sean Bridgers (Trey Willis), John
Boyd West (Melvin), Kim Wall (Marcy), Stuart Greer (Lid Comphrey),
Melinda Page Hamilton (Rebecca), Debra Christofferson (Miss Kathy),
Paul Fitzgerald (Chris), Erika Bierman (Rose), Faith Renee Kennedy
(Alice Willis), Mandi Christine Kerr (Patty Willis), Janice Chester (Pool
Store Woman)

Summary: Daniel attempts to repair the pool that he damaged and later; while
being question by Daggett about the Florida trip with Trey, the sher-
iff reveals a shocking scenario for George Melton’s death. Meanwhile,
Tawney pays a visit to her former foster mother.

Daniel buys more paint at the pool sup-
ply store and hurries back to remove the
paint he spilled in the pool the night be-
fore.

Melvin informs Amantha that his boss
is forcing Daniel to leave after tenants
complained about his presence.

Teddy goes to therapy without Tawney,
who has left Beth’s house without telling
him her whereabouts. He shares his fear
that he’s not right for Tawney. Rebecca
E reminds him that Tawney had a very dif-
ficult childhood and is still figuring out what'’s right for her.

Tawney helps out in the kitchen at Miss Kathy’s house. While speaking to one of Miss Kathy’s
foster girls, Tawney discloses that her mother abandoned her as a child.

Daniel scrubs the pool clean. Melvin insists on paying for the new paint and additional labor,
even after Daniel admits to creating the mess.

Janet visits Murphy’s Diner. As Marcy serves her coffee, Janet explains that her late husband
used to love eating at Murphy’s.

Sheriff Daggett visits Chris Nelms to question him about George. Chris admits that George
called two months ago with concerns about Daniel’s release from prison — but claims not to
know what specifically worried George. Daggett requests a DNA sample from Chris to compare
with DNA from Hanna’s underwear. Chris refuses to speak further without a lawyer.

Janet bonds with Marcy and formally introduces herself.

Miss Kathy urges Tawney to get an education so that she can be self-sufficient. She offers
Tawney a spare bed and comforts her. "You always did feel things hard,” she says.

Sheriff Daggett summons Daniel to the station to ask more questions about his trip to Florida.
Daggett explains that George’s DNA was found on Hanna’s underwear and surmises that Trey,
Chris and others raped Hanna that night. He reveals that George tried to confess years ago and
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might have been killed by Trey when he threatened to confess again. Knowing that he is no longer
a suspect, Daniel starts cooperating with the system in a new way. Daniel lets his guard down
and tells Carl that Trey brought a bag to Florida.

At home, Janet checks in with Jared and encourages him to vent. Jared complains that no
one tells him what’s going on within the family. She promises to tell him everything once Daniel
settles into his new place.

As Daggett takes notes, Daniel recalls that Trey waited until he was asleep to bring his duf-
fel bag into George’s trailer. Trey then went into George’s bedroom, where Daniel found George’s
wallet the next morning. Daggett asks if Daniel saw Trey with George’s cell phone. Daniel remem-
bers it being on the coffee table when he woke up, to which Daggett responds, "Are you sure?”
Daniel corrects himself, remembering that the phone was also in George’s bedroom, aligning him
with Daggett’s facts, and the truth.

After the interview, Daniel walks out of the station in a daze.

Teddy calls Tawney and offers to move out of the house while she figures things out on her
own time. He swallows his disappointment when she turns down the offer. "You're not alone,
Tawney,” he says.

Amantha informs Daniel that he must leave the apartment by midnight. Daniel tells her that
he’s no longer a suspect in George’s death. His spirits lifted, he vows to finish the pool before
midnight.

As Ted, Sr. and Teddy work on the kitchen renovation, Janet announces that Daniel is coming
back to live with them. "I understand,” Ted, Sr. says. Janet tells Teddy that her heart breaks
whenever she thinks about what Daniel did to him. She goes on to say that she is going to help
Daniel, who, while damaged and sick, is not a bad person. Stunned that Janet and Ted, Sr. know
about the assault, Teddy nods in silence and avoids his father’s gaze after Janet leaves.

As Daniel finishes the pool, Jon informs him that Tennessee approved his transfer. Janet and
Jared join Daniel, Amantha and Jon for poolside beers. Janet is thrilled to hear that Daniel is no
longer a suspect in George’s death.

Carl shows up at Trey’s house with a search warrant.

As they stargaze by the pool, Daniel tells Janet he wants to leave Paulie the next morning. He
proposes a mother-son road trip. "It’s over, mother,” he says. They tear up.

Trey watches TV with his family as Carl’s officers search his home. The search team enters
the backyard shed and opens a metal box that hides keys and a scrunchie.
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The Source

Season 3
Episode Number: 22
Season Episode: 6

4 )
Originally aired: Thursday August 13, 2015
Writer: Ray McKinnon
Director: Ray McKinnon
Show Stars: Aden Young (Daniel Holden), Abigail Spencer (Amantha Holden), J.

Smith-Cameron (Janet Talbot), Adelaide Clemens (Tawney Talbot),
Clayne Crawford (Ted Talbot Jr.), Luke Kirby (Jon Stern), Bruce McK-
innon (Ted Talbot Sr.), Jake Austin Walker (Jared Talbot)

Guest Stars: J.D. Evermore (Sheriff Carl Daggett), Sean Bridgers (Trey Willis),
Sharon Conley (D.A. Sondra Person), Stuart Greer (Lid Comphrey),
Paul Fitzgerald (Chris), Michael O’Neill (Senator Roland Foulkes), Levi
Burdick (Chris Nelms’ Attorney), Myke Holmes (Hands-Free-Mike),
Gavin Munn (Little Beach Boy), Heather Lyda (Nurse), Russell Durham
Comegys (Waiter)

Summary: Janet and Daniel undertake a road trip to Nashville with a detour to
the Georgia shore; the sheriff gets a confession in the murder of Hanna
Dean; Amantha has an unexpected dinner companion; and an arrest
is made in the murder of George Melton.

F ; W Sheriff Daggett and D.A. Person sit down
with Chris Nelms and his lawyer at the
police station. They listen to a voicemail
in which Trey warns Chris that George is
"all tweaked out” about Daniel’s release.
Chris confesses that they raped Hanna.

Janet tells Ted, Sr., that she’s taking a
road trip with Daniel. She mentions that
Teddy will be staying at their house and
tables a discussion about their relation-
ship until she returns.

= = : Janet meets Daniel and Amantha at
Jon’s motel, Where Daniel spent the night. Amantha playfully runs off with a box of fritters when
Daniel jokes about Janet stealing them.

At the station, Chris explains that Hanna asked them to keep the rape a secret from Daniel—
then looked curiously "pouty” when they promised to stay quiet as long as she stayed quiet.

Trey sits in the hallway after being summoned to the station by Sheriff Daggett. He waits,
unaware of who or what is holding up Sheriff Daggett.

Chris says Trey came to his house the morning after the rape and instructed him to call
the sex consensual should Hanna end up telling other people. Chris was then called to the
police station but was sent home, along with other kids, without being questioned. D.A. Person
speculates that Trey was unaware of Hanna’s death when he visited Chris.

Daniel says goodbye to Amantha and Jon, then gets in the car with Janet.

Tawney returns home after taking Teddy’s offer to have the house to herself. Teddy says he’ll
stay at Ted, Sr.’s house while she’s there and mentions that Daniel left town for good. Tawney
asks Teddy to change the house locks and is surprised when he agrees without a fight.

On the road to Savannah, Daniel reminisces about a restaurant from his childhood. After
refusing to "Google” to find out if it’s still open, Daniel suggests a side trip to their side trip.

Sheriff Daggett interrogates Trey. When Trey dodges all his questions, Sheriff Daggett reveals
that he listened to the voicemail that Trey left for Chris.
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Amantha thanks Jon for all his hard work. Jon says they would have been better off with a
less distracted lawyer.

Daniel gazes upon his prison from the middle of a field. Back in the car, he admits to Janet
that he sometimes wants to go back to his "cocoon.”

Sheriff Daggett tells Trey that Chris admitted to the rape. Trey guesses that Sheriff Daggett
made a deal with Chris and insists the sex was consensual. Sheriff Daggett lays out all the evi-
dence: Trey was spotted at a gas station near the Flint River, where George’s body was found, on
the same day that George arrived in Paulie. George’s wallet and phone then appeared in George’s
trailer after George’s death. Trey finally comes clean and tells Sheriff Daggett that George killed
himself.

At the beach, Daniel shares a warm exchange with a little boy. Daniel then proclaims he must
go to "the source” and heads out into the water, reveling in the sensation of waves crashing
against his body.

Daniel enters the prison visitation booth to find Tawney across the glass. Daniel realizes this
can’t be a memory and Tawney confirms that it’s a dream. She tells him that she thinks God no
longer exists. He comforts her, telling her God is everywhere. Tawney starts to cry, confessing she
is lost and saying she was happy until he told her too much. The glass between them disappears
and as they lean in to kiss, Tawney awakes—the owner of this dream.

At Senator Foulkes house, Jon tells the wheelchair-bound senator that Sheriff Daggett is
arresting Trey for George’s murder—and wonders if Trey silenced George in order to cover up
another crime. "The one thing I'm sure of is you are dirty,” he says, vowing to expose the senator
and exonerate Daniel.

To her surprise, Amantha finds Teddy reading in Daniel’s bed. He suggests they eat.

While dining at a restaurant, Janet gives Daniel a checkbook and ATM card.

Over Chinese takeout, Teddy tells Amantha that he and Tawney are separated. She in turn
reveals that she and Jon are no longer together. Bonded by their relationship woes, Teddy chal-
lenges her to a game of Gin Rummy.

Trey insists to Sheriff Daggett that he found George’s body, tossed it in the river, then took
George’s wallet, phone and gun and planted them in George’s trailer to throw them off his trail.
Sheriff Daggett agrees to visit the site of George’s alleged suicide, saying a bullet could forensically
prove that George was killed by his own gun.

Jared arrives home to find Amantha and Teddy involved in an intense game of Gin Rummy. He
asks to play, and they say no. A much lighter sibling dynamic has returned to the Holden-Talbot
household.

The next morning, Trey brings Sheriff Daggett to the site of George’s suicide. Unable to find
the bullet that killed George, Sheriff Daggett arrests Trey for George’s murder.

Janet and Daniel arrive at the New Canaan house.

As Teddy and Ted, Sr., install the kitchen stove, Ted, Sr. brings up Margaret, Teddy’s biological
mother. Teddy says he always felt responsible for her leaving and that he was always afraid
Tawney would do the same. And then, she did. Ted, Sr., explains that he was partially to blame—
revealing that he emotionally cheated on Margaret and then didn’t try to repair the marriage. "I
just hope you do all you can to save yours,” he says.

As he gathers his bags, Daniel asks Janet to forgive herself. "You did the best you could under
the most unusual of circumstances,” he says. He walks inside his new home.
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A House Divided

Season 4
Episode Number: 23
Season Episode: 1

4 )
Originally aired: Wednesday October 26, 2016
Writer: Ray McKinnon
Director: Patrick Cady
Show Stars: Aden Young (Daniel Holden), Abigail Spencer (Amantha Holden), J.

Smith-Cameron (Janet Talbot), Adelaide Clemens (Tawney Talbot),
Clayne Crawford (Ted Talbot Jr.), Luke Kirby (Jon Stern), Bruce McK-
innon (Ted Talbot Sr.), Jake Austin Walker (Jared Talbot)

Guest Stars: Anja Akstin (Brittany), Hunter Burke (Julian), Bonita Elery (Woman),
J.D. Evermore (Sheriff Carl Daggett), Scott Lawrence (Avery), Joshua
Mikel (Peyton), Desmond Phillips (Jesse), Patti Schellhaas (Bank ATM
Customer), Cody Scott (Art Patron), Juliette Sicard (Artist), Rebecca
Tilney (Maggie Hines), Veronica Warner (Shopper), Matthew Zuk (Man),
Thomas Hughes (New Canaan Client)

Summary: Daniel is navigating the complicated dynamics of group living at The
New Canaan Project. His housemates, sensing his lack of connection,
challenge him to engage, which leads him to seek counsel from the
group leader.

Daniel lies awake in his bedroom at
the New Canaan Project in Nashville. He
looks at his roommate, Jesse, asleep in
bed.

Daniel takes a bus to his job at a ware-
house, where he pulls inventory items for
shipment orders.

Daniel’'s boss suggests Daniel leave
work early after he finishes his tasks with
time to spare. Daniel deposits his pay-
check at an ATM.

Daniel returns to New Canaan and
walks by a classroom in which Avery, one
of the counselors, teaches ex-offenders
the importance of securing a job and

:

keeping it.

Maggie, a New Canaan counselor, coaches Brittany, an ex-offender, on job interviews. Daniel
drops off his pay stub with Maggie, who introduces Daniel and Brittany to each other. Maggie
calls Daniel a model New Canaan client.

Daniel listens to a voicemail from Janet, who updates him on the family.

In his room, Daniel looks at a letter addressed to him. Jesse informs him that their group
counseling session is about to begin. Daniel puts the unopened letter aside.

Daniel attends the group counseling session with his housemates Pickle, Nate, Tyros and
Jesse. Avery checks in with each housemate’s progress in the outside world. Pickle talks about
the difficulty of being judged at job interviews. Tyros shares his frustration with gauging whether
people are messing with him or not. Daniel briefly describes his day but shares little else. Avery
thanks him.

Daniel sees Jesse sneak out of their bedroom in the middle of the night.

At work, Daniel’s boss explains that one of their biggest customers is returning a large order
due to an error. Though Daniel insists it was not his mistake, his boss nevertheless tells Daniel
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and a co-worker, Earl, to stay at work until they’ve refilled the order. Earl grumbles. The lights
go out.

Daniel’s boss informs the employees that a transformer blew out and will not be fixed for at
least another hour. Daniel declines Earl’s invitation to grab lunch with other employees.

Daniel goes for a walk and sees a woman carrying a bird sculpture into a warehouse. His
curiosity piqued, he follows her inside and learns that she is part of an artist cooperative. As
Daniel studies the sculptures, the artist, Chloe, invites him to help out with their upcoming Art
Mingle. The power turns back on. Tears stream down Daniel’s face as he gazes at the art. He
leaves abruptly.

Daniel returns home after working late and finds Pickle, Nate and Tyros waiting for him. Avery
informs Daniel that Jesse’s urine test came back dirty and that he left the house in the middle of
the night. Daniel says he knows nothing about it. Reading the expressions on everyone’s faces,
Avery says anyone who doesn’t want to be in the house is free to leave. "A divided house will fall,”
he says. He emphasizes that, despite their assumption that Daniel is protecting Jesse, Daniel
probably doesn’t know anything about Jesse.

Pickle, Nate and Tyros enter Daniel’s room and warn Daniel that when he doesn’t talk to
people, they may start to think he doesn’t like them. Nate says Jesse may have fared better
at New Canaan if he’d had a roommate who showed interest in him. "Whatever he needed and
didn’t get in this house, that is on us,” Pickle says. Daniel explains that he’s uncomfortable
around other people and worries that he is not up to the task of supporting them.

Daniel visits Avery the next day and explains that he lived in isolation for 20 years, unlike
his housemates, who socialized with other inmates while they were in prison. Daniel tearfully
describes how he lost his sense of self while in prison and worries that he’s unable to speak
truthfully about his past because he doesn’t even remember whether he killed Hanna or not.
Avery urges Daniel to learn to live with the uncertainty and perhaps, for once, try living as
though he may not have killed Hanna.

Daniel returns to the artist cooperative and apologizes for his behavior the previous day. He
informs Chloe that he just got out of prison. She responds to his disclosure with a kindhearted
joke.

Daniel arrives home to find Pickle, Tyrus and Nate playing cards. Daniel quietly watches from
the sidelines but Pickle insists he join them. Daniel takes a seat and shares that he used to play
rummy with his sister. They resume the card game all together.
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Yolk

Season 4
Episode Number: 24
Season Episode: 2

4 N\
Originally aired: Wednesday November 2, 2016
Writer: Ray McKinnon
Director: Kate Woods
Show Stars: Aden Young (Daniel Holden), Abigail Spencer (Amantha Holden), J.

Smith-Cameron (Janet Talbot), Adelaide Clemens (Tawney Talbot),
Clayne Crawford (Ted Talbot Jr.), Luke Kirby (Jon Stern), Bruce McK-
innon (Ted Talbot Sr.), Jake Austin Walker (Jared Talbot)

Guest Stars: Dennis Boutsikaris (Bernie), Kimberley Drummond (Alesha), J.D.
Evermore (Sheriff Carl Daggett), Blake H. Hughes (Terry), Annie
Humphrey (Kim), Ricky Wayne (Carlton Myles), Sean Bridgers (Trey
Willis), Nathan Darrow (Billy Harris), Linds Edwards (Bobby Dean),
Leigh Higginbotham (Callie), Luke Kirby (Jon Stern), Robin Mullins
(Judy Dean), Buck Taylor (Zeke)

Summary: Back in Paulie, the Holden/Talbot family adjusts to daily life without
Daniel’s catalyzing influence. Janet frets over Daniel’s life away from
home. Teddy and Tawney attempt to reconnect, while Amantha is con-
fronted by someone from her past.

Janet wakes up and hears Ted, Sr. and
Teddy talking in the kitchen. Ted, Sr. of-
fers to drive Teddy to work but Teddy de-
clines, saying he has plans after work.
Janet returns to bed.

Janet stares at the kitchen stove and
decides to bake. She discovers a mess of
two cracked eggs and begins to clean out
the entire refrigerator.

Sheriff Daggett warns Bobby Dean
that Trey Willis is getting out of jail on
bond. Bobby assures Sheriff Daggett he
won’'t harm Trey. Mrs. Dean shares her
hope that Trey’s trial will not absolve

: : Daniel of Hanna’s murder.
Janet leaves a voicemail checking in with Daniel — the voicemail he listened to in the previous
episode.

Jared patches holes in a tent that he pitched in the woods.

Amantha, who has been promoted to manager at Thrifty Town, introduces an official schedule
to employees. Alesha, an employee, asks for Thursday off so that she can study for exams. Aman-
tha says Peanut needs the day off for a doctor’s appointment but nevertheless grants Alesha’s
request.

Jon begs Bernie, his boss, to let him strengthen the case for Daniel’s innocence. Bernie points
out that Daniel is free, thanks to the plea deal, and says they don’t have resources to spend on
a client who’s not even in jail.

Tawney meets Teddy at a restaurant for a date. She shares her excitement about taking college
classes but feels guilty for living in their house while Teddy lives with Ted, Sr. Teddy reminds her
that the topic of their living arrangement is off-limits on date number nine and says she won’t be
able to figure out what she wants for herself if she’s feeling guilty.
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Amantha watches the sun set while smoking pot inside a satellite dish. Jared watches the
sun set from his campsite.

Tawney works at a nursing home. A colleague informs her that it’s her turn to care for Zeke,
one of the more difficult residents. Tawney checks in on Zeke, who gruffly asks her to retrieve
a work plaque from his house so that he can have it when he dies. As Tawney leaves, Zeke
grumbles that she’s just like the rest of them.

Amantha drives home at night. She loses control of the car and veers off the road. Amantha
calls Ted, Sr. to ask for a lift after walking half a mile for cell phone service. He offers to pick her
up at her car.

As Amantha walks back to her car, a man slows down in his truck and offers to help. Amantha
coolly declines. The driver, Billy Harris, recognizes Amantha from high school. Billy examines
Amantha’s car and refuses to abandon her until Ted, Sr. arrives. Amantha apologizes for giving
him attitude.

Teddy arrives home and finds Janet baking a cake to send to Daniel. Janet asks how his date
went. Teddy admits that the therapy is working for him.

After picking up Amantha, Ted, Sr. suggests she stay the night to lift Janet’s spirits. He
explains that Daniel hasn’t returned many of her calls.

Jared reads in his tent. Thunder crashes and rain starts to pour. Jared looks at his patchwork
with concern.

Janet visits Amantha’s room at 3 a.m., worried about Jared. She mentions that Trey is out of
jail and seethes that he gets to see his family. Amantha assures Janet that he’ll be okay. "Who?”
Janet asks. "Jared,” says Amantha.

The next morning, Ted, Sr. asks Teddy about his date. Teddy bristles at Ted, Sr. for inquir-
ing about his personal life. Ted, Sr. informs Amantha that the car repairs will be prohibitively
expensive. Janet walks in with Jared after picking him up from the campsite.

The family sits down for a pancake breakfast. Janet suggests Amantha temporarily move in
with them to save money for a car down payment. Amantha worries the house would be too
crowded but thanks Janet for the offer. Teddy drives Amantha to work.

Janet declares to Ted, Sr. that she’s going to Nashville to see Daniel. "I have to see him, make
sure he’s real,” she says.

Teddy inspects Amantha’s apartment as she gets ready for work. He proposes that they swap
homes: He stays in her apartment while she lives with Ted, Sr. and Janet. She agrees to consider
the idea if he covers her rent. He agrees.

Janet spots Trey at the supermarket. While Trey is away from his cart, she sneaks over and
breaks all the eggs in his egg carton. She flees the scene. Trey discovers the broken eggs.

Janet walks out of the store.
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Bob & Carol & Ted Jr & Alice

Season 4
Episode Number: 25
Season Episode: 3

( )
Originally aired: Wednesday November 9, 2016
Writer: Ray McKinnon
Director: Keith Boak
Show Stars: Aden Young (Daniel Holden), Abigail Spencer (Amantha Holden), J.

Smith-Cameron (Janet Talbot), Adelaide Clemens (Tawney Talbot),
Clayne Crawford (Ted Talbot Jr.), Luke Kirby (Jon Stern), Bruce McK-
innon (Ted Talbot Sr.), Jake Austin Walker (Jared Talbot)

Guest Stars: Pete Burris (Joe Bismark), J.D. Evermore (Sheriff Carl Daggett),
Blake H. Hughes (Terry), Martinez (Herb Stoltz), Rebecca Tilney
(Maggie Hines), Nathan Darrow (Billy Harris), Caitlin FitzGerald
(Chloe), Stephen Louis Grush (Manny), Charles Halford (Guest Star),
Melinda Page Hamilton (Therapist), John Marshall Jones (Pickle),
Scott Lawrence (Avery), Markice Moore (Guest Star), John Boyd West
(Melvin)

Summary: Daniel continues to adjust to group living which is further complicated
by his new roommate. He expands his horizons by spending more time
at the art co-op with Chloe. Meanwhile back in Paulie, Janet decides
to plan a visit to Daniel.

Daniel wakes up his new roommate,
Manny, after Manny sleeps through his
alarm. He touches base with Manny be-
fore leaving the house.

Daniel meets with Avery and Maggie to
update them on his progress in the out-
side world. They suggest he see a ther-
apist who specializes in post-traumatic
stress disorder, considering the long-
term isolation he endured in prison. Mag-
gie hands him a brochure for a clini-
cal psychologist. Daniel quietly processes
their advice.

At work, Teddy receives a phone call
from Bob Childers of Kurry Morris and
Associates. Mr. Childers asks to speak with Janet, who is the tire shop’s legal owner. Teddy
relays Mr. Childers’ message to Ted, Sr.

Jon visits Sheriff Daggett at the police station to discuss the rape allegations against Trey,
George and Chris Nelms. He says Daniel only pled guilty to murder because he didn’t know
about the rape allegations and was afraid of going back to prison. He asks if Sheriff Daggett
knew that the former sheriff, C.J. Pickens, had refused to speak with George 20 years earlier.
Sheriff Daggett ends the conversation.

Janet calls Daniel during his work break and tells him that she’s going to visit him for a day.
After hanging up, Daniel studies the brochure for the clinical psychologist.

At home, Jared takes photos of Furbies in the attic and looks up Furby prices online. He
quickly stows them away when he hears a car pull into the driveway.

Tawney meets with Rebecca, her therapist, and wonders if she should divorce Teddy. "It would
feel like a death,” she says, crying.
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Janet speaks to Mr. Childers on the phone and sets up a meeting for that same week. She
tells Ted, Sr. that Mr. Childers represents a client who wants to buy the tire shop. She asks Ted,
Sr. to refrain from telling Teddy until she has time to process the information. She promises that
she will not sell the store unless everyone agrees to it.

At group therapy, Daniel tells Avery and his housemates that he’s attending a fundraiser for
the artist cooperative. Manny brazenly offers to tag along so that he can meet women but is met
with awkward silence. Nate suggests that Daniel may want to attend by himself. Manny acts out.
Avery reprimands Manny’s outburst and points out that Manny hasn’t even been out of jail for
two weeks.

In Amantha’s apartment, where he now lives, Teddy researches Kurry Morris and Associates
online and learns that it’s a commercial investment real estate firm. Ted, Sr. calls Teddy to inform
him that Janet spoke with Mr. Childers but refrains from offering further details. When Teddy
mentions that Mr. Childers’ firm buys properties for large retail corporations, Ted, Sr. confesses
that Mr. Childers plans to make an offer on the shop but that Janet wanted to keep it a secret
for the time being. Teddy reacts bitterly to the secretiveness and hangs up when Melvin knocks
at the door.

Billy Harris stops by Thrifty Town and asks Amantha out for a beer. She proposes they hang
out that night after she closes up the store.

In a motel room, Jon leaves a message with Janet to let her know that he’s in town.

Melvin gives Teddy some paperwork to sign for the apartment and admits he misses Daniel. He
says he’s heartbroken by the new rape allegations then apologizes for undermining the greater
difficulties that Teddy’s family must be doing through. "Everybody has their own experience,”
says Teddy.

Amantha and Billy drink beer at Thrifty Town as Billy apprises Amantha of the lives of their
high school classmates. Amantha receives a call from Jon but doesn’t pick up. Daniel’s name
comes up in conversation. Billy says he stays out of all speculative talk concerning Daniel.

Teddy leaves a message with Tawney to tell her he had an interesting day. "I love you,” he
says, adding that he hopes his phone call doesn’t bother her.

Daniel attends the party at the artist cooperative. Chloe tells Daniel that she Googled him.
Daniel cautiously asks what she found. "Anything you want to find. It’s the Internet,” she says.
She invites him to her apartment.

Amantha returns home from her date to find Janet drinking wine alone. Janet tells Amantha
that someone wants to buy the tire shop. Reflecting on the past, she says it was not fair to pull
Ted, Sr. into her family’s affairs. "I grabbed him like he was a life preserver,” she says. "I think I
might have pulled him under.”

In Chloe’s apartment, Daniel asks what Chloe wants from him and wonders if she likes "being
around danger.” Chloe tells him she’s not looking for a partner and admits that she’s pregnant
— and that the father is not in the picture. She climbs into bed, hikes up her dress and places
his hand on her belly. She thanks him for calming her.
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Go Ask Roger

Season 4
Episode Number: 26
Season Episode: 4

4 )
Originally aired: Wednesday November 16, 2016
Writer: Ray McKinnon
Director: Stephen Gyllenhaal
Show Stars: Aden Young (Daniel Holden), Abigail Spencer (Amantha Holden), J.

Smith-Cameron (Janet Talbot), Adelaide Clemens (Tawney Talbot),
Clayne Crawford (Ted Talbot Jr.), Luke Kirby (Jon Stern), Bruce McK-
innon (Ted Talbot Sr.), Jake Austin Walker (Jared Talbot)

Guest Stars: Steve Coulter (Bob Childers), J.D. Evermore (Sheriff Carl Daggett), R.
Keith Harris (Rick), Ricky Wayne (Carlton Myles)
Summary: Daniel gets temporary respite from the grind of the halfway house

when he and Chloe set out on an adventure. Meanwhile, Amantha
is intrigued by an invitation from Billy while Tawney invests a little too
personally in one of her patients.

Billy shows up at the Talbot residence
to take Amantha on their hunting date.
Amantha grumbles about the early hour.

At work, Tawney asks Zeke if he needs
anything and apologizes for his unhap-
piness with life. "You're a good girl,” he
says. "Say your prayers. You'll be alright.”

Tawney asks her supervisor if they
can retrieve Zeke’s plaque or at least call
his nephew in Arizona to arrange for it.
He reluctantly agrees to look into it de-
spite liability and privacy issues.

At home, Ted, Sr. asks Janet if he can
‘ accompany her to see Daniel in Nashville.

s Janet hesitates and asks to run it by
Daniel. She defers her decision until after that day’s meeting with Mr. Childers.

Chloe and Daniel drive to the home of a famous musician to deliver and pick up art for an
auction. The musician’s assistant, Rick, meets Chloe and Daniel at the house.

Janet, Ted, Sr. and Teddy wait for Mr. Childers at the tire shop. Teddy says a local realtor
estimated the shop’s worth at $500,000. Mr. Childers calls Janet to tell her he has a flat tire.

While hunting in the woods, Amantha questions Billy about his divorce.

Daniel helps Chloe wrap artwork. On his way out, Rick orders Chloe to lock the door and text
him when they’re finished.

Jon tries to speak with C.J. Pickens at his house but nobody answers the front door. Jon
announces that he’ll be waiting in his car.

Janet, Ted, Sr. and Teddy sit down with Mr. Childers after Teddy patches Mr. Childers’ tire.
Mr. Childers says he represents a national pharmacy chain that is considering making an offer
of $650,000 for the tire shop building. He says they are also considering two other locations.

Chloe eats pistachio gelato out of the musician’s freezer, causing Daniel to vocalize his dis-
comfort. Chloe assures him they're safe and insists he try gelato for the first time. Daniel tastes
the gelato and relaxes.

While parked outside C.J. Pickens’ house, Jon calls a woman who was at the party in the
woods on the night Hanna was murdered. The woman recalls that Chris Nelms and at least a

59



Rectify Episode Guide

dozen other kids were at the sheriff’'s office the next morning. Jon notes that only seven of the
kids were officially interviewed, not including Chris.

Mrs. Pickens walks up to Jon and tells him that C.J. is not going to speak with him. She goes
back inside.

Tawney and Teddy meet at a diner for their date night. Teddy stews over the meeting with
Mr. Childers and presumes he won't be consulted for Janet’s final decision. Tawney tries to
change the subject. Teddy says date nights are pointless if they're not going to discuss their
future together. Tawney says Teddy’s anger frightens her. "You don’t need a husband, you need
a saint,” he tells her and leaves.

Daniel and Chloe eat nuts at the musician’s house. Daniel says his counselors advised him
to see a PTSD specialist. Chloe agrees and says everyone at some point needs to figure out how
to deal or not deal with "their stuff.” Rick calls to make sure they've left the house. Daniel and
Chloe hurriedly clean up their mess.

Janet tells Ted, Sr. that Daniel is willing to see him in Nashville.

Janet visits Jared in the attic and learns that he sold his old Furbies online. Jared explains
that he’s selling items he no longer wants. "I'm sorry for being such a bad mother,” Janet says
unexpectedly.

Amantha rejoins Billy in bed after making love. She admits she didn’t sleep with anyone until
she moved to Atlanta.

Tawney tells Zeke that the nursing home is calling his nephew to see about getting his plaque.
Zeke admits that he invented the nephew on the nursing home form because he doesn’t have
any family members. He describes how his world grew small and “very lonely” over time. "You're
a good girl. Say your prayers, you'll be alright,” he says. Tawney asks why he keeps saying that
to her. "You keep asking for it. It’s in everything you do,” he says.

Tawney calls Teddy and leaves a message, apologizing for being unavailable when he was
upset about the tire shop. She invites him to stop by the house. "Love you,” she says.

Teddy drinks beer at home and ignores Tawney’s phone call. When he listens to her voicemail,
he cries.

Trey leaves a bar after getting the cold shoulder from the bartender.

Jon follows Trey into the bar parking lot and warns that prosecutors want to put Trey in jail
for a long time. He asks why Chris Nelms never seems to get dirty. "Go ask Roger,” Trey says. He
adds that if Daniel didn’t kill Hanna, he would put his money on "country club Chris.”

Chloe drops Daniel off at the New Canaan house. They kiss.

Daniel’s roommate Manny masturbates and grunts in bed. Daniel, who lies awake nearby,
curls up with anger.
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Pineapples in Paris

Season 4
Episode Number: 27
Season Episode: 5

( \
Originally aired: Wednesday November 23, 2016
Writer: Scott Teems, Coleman Herbert
Director: Scott Teems
Show Stars: Aden Young (Daniel Holden), Abigail Spencer (Amantha Holden), J.

Smith-Cameron (Janet Talbot), Adelaide Clemens (Tawney Talbot),
Clayne Crawford (Ted Talbot Jr.), Luke Kirby (Jon Stern), Bruce McK-
innon (Ted Talbot Sr.), Jake Austin Walker (Jared Talbot)
Guest Stars: J.D. Evermore (Sheriff Carl Daggett), Ricky Wayne (Carlton Myles)
Summary: The dread of Janet and Ted’s impending visit coupled with a confronta-
tion in group therapy causes Daniel to doubt the possibility of ever
adjusting to a normal life.

Daniel asks Manny to refrain from mas-
turbating while around him. Manny bris-
tles.

Jared gives Janet some of Daniel’s old
belongings from the attic and suggests
she bring them to Daniel in Nashville.
Janet admits she put the belongings back
in the attic after Daniel threw them out.

Janet and Ted, Sr. begin their drive
to Nashville. Janet fantasizes about their
options if they ended up selling tire shop.
She shares her opinion that they should

= 2 a8 sell and then looks to Ted, Sr. for a reac-
tion. Ted, Sr. asks what Janet would do if he disagreed.

Janet and Ted, Sr. stop for food. Ted, Sr. backpedals on his statement in the car and says he
was speaking hypothetically. Janet asks what Ted, Sr. would do if he owned the store by himself.
Ted, Sr. insists he needs time to formulate an answer. Janet asks him to discuss his thoughts
with her before any offer is rescinded.

Teddy visits Tawney at home, where she has prepared some muffins. Teddy tells Tawney that
Mr. Childers made an official offer on the tire shop. Changing the subject, he gently suggests
they get a divorce. Tawney agrees. Teddy tears up and leaves for work.

At group therapy, Avery notices tension between Daniel and Manny. Manny says Daniel is
mad at him for masturbating in their bedroom and calls him a "nut.” Daniel explodes and says
that Manny’s masturbating upsets him. "You have no idea how much,” he says. Nate, Pickle and
Tyrus advise Manny to respect his roommate. Daniel storms out.

Teddy stops by the Talbot house and grabs a beer from the refrigerator. Bobby Dean rings the
doorbell, looking for Jared. Teddy informs him that he’s not home.

Teddy and Bobby drink beers at the kitchen table. Bobby explains that George Melton used
to come by his house after Hanna’s death and grew close to him and Mrs. Dean. When George
decided to stop coming by, Bobby asked him why. "Trey went back,” George told him. Bobby
asks Teddy to apologize to Daniel for beating him up at Hanna’s grave.

Jon stops by Sheriff Carl Daggett's home after Carl invites him over. Carl tells Jon that he’s
stepping out and encourages him to browse some reading material on the kitchen table. After
the sheriff leaves, Jon finds a manila folder underneath a stack of magazines. Inside the folder
is the sworn affidavit of Christopher Nelms.
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Tawney sits quietly at her kitchen table. Carlton, her work supervisor, leaves a message on
the answering machine and asks Tawney to call him back.

Daniel paces anxiously outside the artist cooperative. Chloe joins him outside. Daniel con-
fesses that he was sexually assaulted in prison multiple times. Chloe tells him she can’t save
him. "But I can hold you,” she says. She hugs him.

Teddy tells Amantha and Jared about Bobby’s visit. Amantha decides Bobby’s conversation
merits a phone call to Jon. She notices Teddy’s peculiar behavior and invites him to stay the
night. He declines the offer and leaves.

On the road, Janet encourages Ted, Sr. to fantasize about a different life. Ted, Sr. refuses to
play her game. Janet accuses him of resenting her for years and blames him for never saying
a word about it. Ted, Sr. admits she’s right. "And I blame you for never thanking me for it,” he
says.

At work, Carlton informs Tawney that Zeke has fallen unconscious.

Tawney sits by Zeke’s side and offers to get his plaque for him. She holds his hand and cries.
“Just tell me what to do. Somebody, please,” she says.

Daniel returns to the New Canaan house and finds Janet and Ted, Sr. talking to Nate and
Pickle. Janet hugs him. Pickle informs Daniel that Avery and Manny went for a walk and won’t
return for a while.

Teddy goes to his house where Tawney now resides and cooks a steak on the grill. He tries
to enter the house but the door is locked. He breaks in through a window, setting off the alarm.
He tries to turn off the alarm but finds that Tawney has changed the code. The alarm company
turns off the alarm after he answers the security questions.

Janet cries in her hotel bathroom.

Pickle informs Daniel that he will be his new roommate.

Teddy eats steak alone. He gathers fishing rods, guns and whiskey, then goes upstairs and
stares at his old bedroom.
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Physics

Season 4
Episode Number: 28
Season Episode: 6

( \
Originally aired: Wednesday November 30, 2016
Writer: Coleman Herbert, Scott Teems
Director: Stephen Gyllenhaal
Show Stars: Aden Young (Daniel Holden), Abigail Spencer (Amantha Holden), J.

Smith-Cameron (Janet Talbot), Adelaide Clemens (Tawney Talbot),
Clayne Crawford (Ted Talbot Jr.), Luke Kirby (Jon Stern), Bruce McK-
innon (Ted Talbot Sr.), Jake Austin Walker (Jared Talbot)

Guest Stars: Sharon Conley (D.A. Sondra Person), J.D. Evermore (Sheriff Carl
Daggett), Ricky Muse (Dog / Cab Driver), Ricky Wayne (Carlton Myles)
Summary: Ted Sr. goes in search of his own bliss; Janet and Daniel make an
effort to be honest with one another.
\ J

The doorbell wakes Teddy after he ac-
cidentally falls asleep in Tawney’s bed.
Teddy opens the front door for an exter-
minator then rushes out before Tawney
returns home.

At a Nashville cafe, Janet informs
Daniel that Rite Aid wants to buy the tire
store. While Janet is in the restroom, Ted,
Sr. apologizes to Daniel for kicking him
out of their house. Daniel assures Ted,
Sr. that there is no need for apologies.

Teddy drinks whiskey and coke at
work and stares at the deflated tube man
outside. "I know how you feel,” he says. He inflates the tube man.

At the Talbot residence, Amantha tells Jon about Teddy’s conversation with Bobby Dean. Jon
informs Amantha that Christopher Nelms recently gave a deposition swearing that he, George
and Trey raped Hanna. He explains that he quit Justice Row and is considering filing an IAC
(Ineffective Assistance of Counsel) to dismiss Daniel’'s guilty plea, on the grounds that he was
sleeping with his client’s sister.

Daniel takes Janet to a tourist site and urges her to let him go. "I can’t abandon you,” she
says. He implores her to be "free of bondage.”

Ted, Sr. reads a Nashville tourism book at a location where Patsy Cline nearly died. He spon-
taneously asks his taxi driver to drive him 90 miles to the site where Cline died in a plane crash.

Teddy advises a customer on tires. The customer tries to haggle by mentioning Walmart’'s
cheaper prices. He then explains that his wife asked him to mention Walmart, despite his prefer-
ence for local businesses. When Teddy tells the customer to buy the Walmart tires, the customer
decides to ignore his wife and buy Teddy’s tires.

Daniel shows Janet where he works. As they sit in the car, Janet cries. She mentions that she
may leave Ted, Sr. because of their differences. Daniel reveals that he has a girlfriend and offers
to introduce her.

Tawney sits by Zeke’s side as he dies. She cries and prays for him.

Jon meets with D.A. Sondra Person and shows her a video interview with Bobby Dean. He
says Justice Row is filing an IAC claim to dismiss Daniel’s guilty plea and encourages her to
invite someone from the Georgia Bureau of Investigation — someone without a vested interest —
to look into the case.
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Tawney drives to Zeke’s house and finds the house key in the hiding spot where he described
it. She looks for his work plaque inside. The housekeeper arrives and offers to show Tawney
where the plaque is.

In the backyard, the housekeeper encourages Tawney to keep the plaque. "You're a good girl.
You say your prayers, you'll be alright,” the housekeeper says. "That’'s what Zeke used to say to
me,” Tawney says.

At Chloe’s apartment, Janet and Chloe talk about Daniel while he picks up takeout food.
Janet thanks Chloe for taking a chance on Daniel, even though she’s moving to Ohio to have her
baby. Daniel returns with the food. Janet sets the table and quietly watches him joke with Chloe.

Back at the motel, Ted, Sr. tells Janet that he thinks they should sell the tire store — but only
if they offer to give Teddy the inventory. Janet agrees and asks what he wants to do after selling
the store. "I don’t know,” he admits. "But I know we can’t keep going on the way we are. I'm not
blind to that.”

Daniel thanks Chloe for dinner. "It felt like living,” he says. Chloe carefully encourages Daniel
to attend therapy. Daniel worries that he will be unable to cope with his past. Chloe hypothesizes
that Daniel is afraid to let go of the identity that he cultivated in prison in order to survive. Daniel
walks out on Chloe and tells her to send him a postcard from Ohio.

Teddy closes up the tire store and scowls at the tube man bouncing outside. He shoots the
tube man with a rifle. A bullet ricochets and hits his leg. He calls 911 and hears ambulances in
the distance.
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Happy Unburdening

Season 4
Episode Number: 29
Season Episode: 7

4 \
Originally aired: Wednesday December 7, 2016
Writer: Ray McKinnon, Kate Powers
Director: Billy Gierhart
Show Stars: Aden Young (Daniel Holden), Abigail Spencer (Amantha Holden), J.

Smith-Cameron (Janet Talbot), Adelaide Clemens (Tawney Talbot),
Clayne Crawford (Ted Talbot Jr.), Luke Kirby (Jon Stern), Bruce McK-
innon (Ted Talbot Sr.), Jake Austin Walker (Jared Talbot)

Guest Stars: Caitlin FitzGerald (Chloe), Sharon Conley (D.A. Sondra Person), Linds
Edwards (Bobby Dean), J.D. Evermore (Sheriff Carl Daggett), Rebecca
Henderson (Jenny Paar), John Marshall Jones (Pickle), Frank Hoyt
Taylor (CJ Pickens)

Summary: Daniel worries that his life has gotten a little too real. With Jared’s
help, Janet is loosening her grip on the past. Teddy opens up to Ted
Sr about what he really wants for his future while Amantha reconnects
with her past in an unexpected way.

In a therapy session, Daniel tearfully de-
scribes getting raped in prison. The ther-
apist records his description on a smart-
phone.

Janet and Jared clean out the garage.
Jared receives an online bid for Janet’s
bicycle and encourages her to sell it.
Janet gazes at the bicycle and agrees to
let Jared sell it.

Teddy and Ted, Sr. visit a potential
new storefront for the tire shop. Teddy
gently tells Ted, Sr. that they are not
responsible for each other anymore and

wonders if he even wants to stay in the tire business.

Amantha and Jon meet Bobby Dean at a rollerskating rink. Bobby apologizes to Amantha for
nearly beating Daniel to death. Amantha refuses to forgive him. He hands her a letter from Mrs.
Dean to Janet.

Daniel tells Chloe about his therapy session. He says the therapist’s approach is to revisit the
rape over and over until he becomes "bored” with it. He notices that Chloe hasn’t started packing
for Ohio and begins to pack a box for her.

Amantha finds Janet and Jared clearing out the attic. She forbids them from selling any of
her belongings and notes that Jared gets to enjoy his time with Janet, while she had to be "knee
deep in her shit.” She gives Mrs. Dean’s note to Janet.

D.A. Person and Sheriff Daggett sit down with C.J. Pickens at the police station. D.A. Person
places a recorder on the table.

Tawney visits Teddy at his apartment and warns him that she told Janet about the divorce.
They catch up on each other’s lives. Tawney agrees to get some pizza with Teddy.

D.A. Person interrogates C.J. about the investigation into Hanna’s murder. C.J. admits that
Sen. Foulkes questioned George in a manner that may have led George to implicate Daniel. He
says that Daniel confessed after they interrogated him for 10 hours, and after they informed him
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that they had an eyewitness who would testify to his raping Hanna. C.J. says Trey repeatedly
denied seeing Daniel rape Hanna.

D.A. Person interrogates C.J. about Chris Nelms and his father, Roger, who was a lawyer. C.J.
says that Sen. Foulkes and Roger, who were friends, spoke privately after Hanna was murdered
and that Sen. Foulkes delayed questioning Chris so that they could "wait and see if Holden
would... ” "Cave?” asks D.A. Person. "In a word, yes,” says C.J.

Chloe procrastinates packing and floats the idea of staying in Nashville. Daniel admits he
would love her to stay but reminds her that he’s a warehouseman who makes $7.85 an hour
and will spend the next 20 years seeing a probation officer every other week. Chloe plays a Harry
Nilsson record for Daniel. They dance.

Teddy visits the Talbot residence and asks Janet to accompany him when he breaks the news
about his divorce to Ted, Sr.

In the backyard, Teddy tells Ted, Sr. that he and Tawney are getting a divorce. He tearfully
explains that he and Tawney still love each other. Ted, Sr. offers his support to Teddy then quietly
goes inside to take a bath.

At Thrifty Town, Amantha receives a visit from her high school friend Jenny. Amantha apolo-
gizes to Jenny for abandoning their friendship. Jenny admits that it hurt to lose Amantha as a
friend but says she understood Amantha was coping with tragedy.

Janet helps Ted, Sr. wash his back as he sits despondently in the tub. "I love you, Ted,” she
says. "I love you too, Janet,” he says.

At the New Canaan house, Daniel lies in bed listening to headphones. Pickle walks in and
announces that he found a job at a dry cleaning shop. Daniel congratulates him and agrees to
join the group for a celebration. After Pickle leaves, Daniel puts his headphones back on and
resumes listening to the audio recording of his rape account.
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All I'm Sayin’

Season 4
Episode Number: 30
Season Episode: 8

( )
Originally aired: Wednesday December 14, 2016
Writer: Ray McKinnon
Director: Ray McKinnon
Show Stars: Aden Young (Daniel Holden), Abigail Spencer (Amantha Holden), J.

Smith-Cameron (Janet Talbot), Adelaide Clemens (Tawney Talbot),
Clayne Crawford (Ted Talbot Jr.), Luke Kirby (Jon Stern), Bruce McK-
innon (Ted Talbot Sr.), Jake Austin Walker (Jared Talbot)

Guest Stars: Ben Bean (Cafe Patron), Jesse Brand (Cafe Patron), LaDaveon Burford
(Cook), Hunter Burke (Julian), Sharon Conley (D.A. Sondra Person),
Marcy Conway (Jogger in Park), J.D. Evermore (Sheriff Carl Daggett),
Autumn Gruber (Dotty Nelms), Joshua Mikel (Peyton), Markice Moore
(Tyrus), Rachel Mae Moore (Restaurant Patron), Laura Palka (News-
caster), Lucie Carroll (Tourist), Billy James (Trucker Restaurant Pa-
tron)

Sumimary: Daniel begins to appreciate his progress as he realizes what his new
life may look like. The old life is quickly disappearing for Teddy, who
knows change is unavoidable. Jon debriefs Janet and Amantha on
what he has learned about Daniel’s case.

Flash back to the day of Daniel’s release
from prison: Janet laments the time that
Daniel has lost. Amantha accuses Janet
of being incapable of happiness and im-
plores her to appreciate Daniel’'s home-
coming.

In the present, Janet apologizes to
Amantha for abandoning her over the
years. Amantha reasons that Janet was
simply depressed. Janet urges Amantha
to live the life she wants and calls Aman-
tha her "hero.”

Daniel calls Chloe from work. He
leaves a voicemail letting her know that he’s stopping by later.

Julian pulls Daniel aside and offers him a raise to $8.00 an hour.

Sheriff Daggett stops by the tire shop and informs Teddy that the D.A. is willing to knock his
gun charges down to misdemeanors, as long as he attends an anger management class, firearms
safety course and AA meetings. Teddy asks Sheriff Daggett if he still believes Daniel killed Hanna.
Sheriff Daggett admits that he now believes Daniel is innocent.

Jon visits Janet and Amantha and updates them on the new developments regarding Chris
and Roger Nelms. He says that D.A. Person has submitted a request with the Georgia Bureau
of Investigation to open a new inquiry into Hanna’s murder. He says he will drive to Nashville to
update Daniel.

Daniel arrives at Chloe’s apartment and finds it empty. Peyton, an artist at the co-op, tells
Daniel that Chloe doesn’t like goodbyes then gives Daniel a painting and a book that Chloe left
for him. Daniel sits and meditates on the painting.

Amantha walks Jon to his car. "Nothing will rectify what’s happened,” she concludes. "It won’t
bring back Hanna or my dad or my 18-year-old brother.” They hug.

=
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Daniel calls Amantha from Chloe’s apartment and thanks her for sending him letters. Aman-
tha explains that Jon is coming to see him.

Daniel rides the bus home with his painting.

In group therapy, Daniel expresses his sadness over Chloe’s departure. Avery points out that
she and Daniel both made the right decision. "Sometimes you just wonder is that what we’re
doing here. Keeping our expectations so low that we’ll never be disappointed,” Daniel responds.
Pickle tells Daniel that his feelings of disappointment are ultimately positive because it means
he’s at least capable of hope.

Daniel looks at Chloe’s painting in his room then starts to read the book that she gave him.

In the kitchen, Janet asks Ted, Sr. if he’s ready for his last day at the tire shop. They Kkiss.
Jared walks in. "Let’s do it,” says Jared. He leaves with Janet.

In therapy, Daniel explains that listening to his rape account still traumatizes him. The ther-
apist assures Daniel that it's not unusual for therapy to take a year. Daniel decides to revisit
Kerwin’s execution and describes the silence on death row as the guards came to take Kerwin.
”’Because I know you,” he says, quoting Kerwin’s last words to him. "He wanted me to believe in
myself.”

Jared and Bobby Dean chat in the Dean backyard. Inside, Janet and Judy Dean sit in Hanna’s
room. Judy tells Janet that she no longer believes Daniel killed Hanna and doubts that finding
the real killer will make a difference to her. "I understand,” says Janet.

At the New Canaan house, Jon tells Daniel about D.A. Person’s request to open a new inves-
tigation. Daniel admits it would be nice to visit home and thanks Jon for his sacrifices over the
years. Daniel explains that he used to feel guilty when people tried to help him but that he now
wants to fight for his life.

In a prison flashback, Kerwin tries to lift Daniel’s spirits by pretending they’re driving a car
around New York City. Daniel indulges the fantasy and laughs.

At the tire shop, Teddy introduces Ted, Sr. to Melvin, who purchases their last tires. Tawney
stops by with monkey bread. Janet, Jared, Amantha and Billy arrive as Ted, Sr. shuts the doors.

At the Paulie County Courthouse, D.A. Person holds a press conference to announce that the
Georgia Bureau of Investigation is opening a new investigation into Hanna’s murder after new
details raised doubts about the validity of the original investigation.

Janet, Amantha, Teddy, Ted, Sr., Billy and Melvin watch the press conference at the shop.
D.A. Person declares that her office will try to set aside Daniel’'s conviction if it becomes clear
that he is innocent. Amantha tears up. Janet and Ted, Sr. hug.

Sheriff Daggett visits Trey to tell him they’re dropping George’s murder charge against him.
Figuring that he is now a suspect in Hanna’s murder, Trey tells Sheriff Daggett that he visited
Chris Nelms the morning after the murder and that Chris told him, "Bitch should have kept her
mouth shut and none of this would have happened.” He explains that Hanna had been high on
mushrooms and having sex with multiple partners until Chris got on top of her, at which point
she put up a fight. He says Hanna bit Chris’ hand and that Chris hid his injured hand at the
police station the following day. Sheriff Daggett tells Trey the investigation is out of his hands
and leaves.

At a diner, Daniel, Pickle, Tyrus and Nate celebrate Pickle’s new job.

Janet, Amantha, Tawney, Teddy, Ted, Sr. and Billy laugh while eating takeout at home. Janet
takes a phone call from Daniel. Teddy gets on the phone with Daniel and says that Daniel can
have his father’s ceramic mechanic. Daniel insists Teddy have it. Teddy agrees to leave it at the
Talbot house for the time being. Teddy hands the phone to Tawney. She and Daniel briefly catch
up and say goodbye.

Daniel lies in bed and stares at the ceiling.

Daniel walks in a meadow with Chloe and her baby. He cradles the baby and smiles.
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Adam AalderksS.......cooviiiiii i 1
0301 (Sheriff's Deputy)

Dayo Abanikanda ...............oooiiiiiiiiiiiiiia 1
0103 (News Cameraman)

Anja AKSHIN . ..o 1
0401 (Brittany)

Stephanie Astalos-Jones...............ccooiiiiiiinn... 1

0203 (Dotty)

Hunter Ballard ..........coooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiinnnn 1
0102 (Teenage Prankster)
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0408 (Cafe Patron)
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0105 (Baptism Man)

William Betsill. ... 1
0202 (Stevie Wages)
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0305 (Rose)
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0101 (Trey Willis); 0104 (Trey Willis); 0106 (Trey
Willis); 0201 (Trey Willis); 0205 (Trey Willis);
0206 (Trey Willis); 0207 (Trey Willis); 0208
(Trey Willis); 0210 (Trey Willis); 0303 (Trey
Willis); 0304 (Trey Willis); 0305 (Trey Willis);
0306 (Trey Willis); 0402 (Trey Willis)
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0104 (Boy’s Mother)
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0408 (Cook)
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Lovass); 0301 (Wynn Lovass); 0302 (Wynn Lo-
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0210 (Turner)
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(D.A. Sondra Person); 0408 (D.A. Sondra Per-
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0208 (Sheriff Carl Daggett); 0210 (Sheriff Carl
Daggett); 0302 (Sheriff Carl Daggett); 0303 (Sher-
iff Carl Daggett); 0304 (Sheriff Carl Daggett);
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Daggett); 0401 (Sheriff Carl Daggett); 0402 (Sher-
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Charles Halford ...........cooiiiiiiiii i 1
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0202 (Benji Melton); 0209 (Benji Melton); 0302 (Benji
Melton)

BillyJames..........coooiiiiiiiiiiiiii i 1
0408 (Trucker Restaurant Patron)

Dylan James ..........coviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii e 1
0210 (Older Boy)

John Marshall Jones ..........coovviiiiiinieniniennenn. 2
0403 (Pickle); 0407 (Pickle)

Tara JOMES. ..ttt et e 1

0101 (TV Reporter)

Samantha Kacho...................coooiiiiiiiiiiian... 1
0301 (Mom at the Park)

Marie Keefe ..ot 1
0104 (Reporter)

Tanner Keith ... 1
0103 (TV Reporter)

Faith Renee Kennedy ......................ooiiiiat 4

0104 (Alice); 0207 (Alice Willis); 0208 (Alice Willis);
0305 (Alice Willis)

Mandi Christine Kerr.............coiiiiiiiiiiinenn.. 1
0305 (Patty Willis)

Luke Kirby ... ..ot 1
0402 (Jon Stern)

Aaron KirschnicK..........coooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii i, 2

0202 (Jeep Guy / Party Goer); 0205 (Party Goer)
Rebecca Koon
0105 (High School Principal)
Mary Kraft.... ..o 1
0209 (Barbara)

ScCOott LAWTeNCe . ..o vt 2
0401 (Avery); 0403 (Avery)

Matt LOWE ..ot e 1
0303 (Perrie)

Heather Lyda.............oooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiini 1

0306 (Nurse)

ANn Mahoney .....o.ovuiiiiiiiiiii i 1
0302 (Beth)
AQron MarCUS . ..o vteii et ii it ieii e neannens 1

0206 (Gaines’ Son-In-Law)
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MartinezZ . .....ovriii i e e e 1
0403 (Herb Stoltz)

Morganna May .........cooviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii i 1
0204 (Stacy)

Ann McCKeNnzie . ......oovuiiiniiiiii it 1
0204 (Hazel)

Bruce MCKIiNNON . ....oouviiiiiiiii i 4

0101 (Ted Talbot Sr.); 0102 (Ted Talbot Sr.); 0105
(Ted Talbot Sr.); 0106 (Ted Talbot Sr.)

Jane McNeill. .. .. ..o 1
0202 (Debbie Wages)

AjayMehta ... 2
0102 (Mr. Patel); 0302 (Mr. Patel)

Joshua MiKel........oiiiiiiiii i 2
0401 (Peyton); 0408 (Peyton)

Marin Miller .......oiinin i ieeeaens 1
0203 (Gretchen Geer)

Adam Minarovich ............ooiiiiiiiiiiiniiieieinenen.. 1
0202 (Jake Johnson)

Markice MOOTE . ...o.vueiti ittt 2
0403 (Guest Star); 0408 (Tyrus)

Rachel Mae MOOTE€ . ......oviiiiriiiiiiiaiaanennnss 1
0408 (Restaurant Patron)

Sharon MOITiS . .. ..utiii i et ieieeanns 2
0104 (D. A. Sondra Person); 0106 (D. A. Sondra

Person)
Robin MUullins ......oovviiiinininin i iieie e 7

0103 (Judy Dean); 0105 (Judy Dean); 0106 (Judy
Dean); 0202 (Judy Dean); 0203 (Judy Dean);
0208 (Judy Dean); 0402 (Judy Dean)

Gavin MUNNL. ...t 1
0306 (Little Beach Boy)

Thomas Francis Murphy ..ot 1
0205 (Lionel)

RICKY MUSE . ..ottt 1

0406 (Dog / Cab Driver)

Robert Oliver NOITiS. .. ..vvtiii it i iiaiiaennanns 1
0103 (Skater 1)

Michael O'Neill. ...t 13

0101 (Senator Roland Foulkes); 0102 (Senator Roland

Foulkes); 0103 (Senator Roland Foulkes); 0106
(Senator Roland Foulkes); 0201 (Senator Roland
Foulkes); 0203 (Senator Roland Foulkes); 0205
(Senator Roland Foulkes); 0206 (Senator Roland
Foulkes); 0208 (Senator Roland Foulkes); 0209
(Senator Roland Foulkes); 0210 (Senator Roland
Foulkes); 0304 (Senator Roland Foulkes); 0306
(Senator Roland Foulkes)
Theresa O'Shea......oviiiniiii it iiiieaenenns 1
0204 (Older Daughter)

Nat Padgett.............ooooiiiiiiiii 1
0205 (James)

Laura Palka .......covtiiiiii ittt iii i 1
0408 (Newscaster)

Tina ParKer........o.iiiiiiii i iie et 1
0205 (Karen)

Hannah Peasall ............cooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii e 1
0105 (The Peasall Band)

JojoPeasall..........cooiiiiiiiiiiiii 1
0105 (The Peasall Band)

Leah Peasall........coiiiiiiiiiiiiiii it 1
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0105 (The Peasall Band)

Michael Peasall...........coviiiiiiiiiiiiieieinanannns 1
0105 (The Peasall Band)

Sarah Peasall.........ccooiiiiiiiiiii it 1
0105 (The Peasall Band)

Desmond Phillips ............cooooiiiiiiiiiiini 1
0401 (Jesse)

Matthew Posey ........c.coviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii i 1
0206 (Charlie the Chaplain)

Ron Prather ... 1
0101 (Lonnie)

Russ Prine...... ..o e 1

0101 (Death Row Inmate)

David RamMSEY . ...ooitiiii it 1
0206 (Mr. Burgdorf)

Drew Reeves. . ..ottt 1
0204 (Homeless Man)

Shelley Reid .......oooiiiiiiiii i 1
0104 (Convention Presenter)

Christina Reynolds.............cocoiiiiiiiiiiiiiin .., 1
0205 (Jennifer)

Karen Wheeling Reynolds................c.oooviiiiiian, 1
0205 (Ginny)

Leon RIppy ...ovvivii 2

0205 (Lezlie); 0206 (Lezlie)

Jeremy Sande ... .. ...t 1
0204 (Rick)

Patti Schellhaas..........coviiiiiiiiiiiieieieieinnenes 1
0401 (Bank ATM Customer)

Alicia SChUlZ. ... ..ot i 1
0104 (Barroom Girl 1)

Cody SCOtt..oviii 1
0401 (Art Patron)

Sandi Shackleford................cooiiiiiiiiiiiia 1
0104 (Mrs. Atwood)

Sonny Shroyer ..........c.ooviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiin.. 1
0101 (Mayor Johnny Daggett)

Juliette Sicard..........cooiiiiiii i 1
0401 (Artist)

Orelon SidNey ......ovvuiiiniiii i 1
0101 (TV Reporter)

Caitlin Smith........ooiiiiiiii i 1
0104 (Barroom Girl 2)

Jayson Warner Smith.................ooiiiiiL 8

0101 (Wendall); 0102 (Wendall); 0104 (Wendall); 0105
(Wendall); 0106 (Wendall); 0201 (Wendall); 0202
(Wendall Jelks); 0208 (Wendall Jelks)
Ron Clinton Smith ..., 2
0101 (Correctional Officer Johnson); 0202 (Senior
Correctional Officer Johnson)

Gina Stewart .........oviiiii i 1
0204 (Anna Lewis)
Ray StONEY . ...vviiii 1

0203 (Louis)

Brooke Jaye Taylor............cooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiinn, 1
0206 (Darla)

Buck Taylor .......cooiiuiiiiiiiiii i 1
0402 (Zeke)

Frank Hoyt Taylor.............oooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiin, 4

0101 (Sheriff CJ Pickens); 0206 (CJ Pickens); 0208
(CJ Pickens); 0407 (CJ Pickens)
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Jennifer D. Taylor........co.viiiiiniiiniiiiiinenennn.. 1
0205 (Cindy)

Madeline Taylor..........covvuiiiiiiiiiiniiiiiinnnn... 1
0103 (Voice of Hanna Dean)

RebeccaTilney ...........ooooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiininnn. 2
0401 (Maggie Hines); 0403 (Maggie Hines)

Lauren Emily Townsend....................cooooiiane 1
0302 (Peanut)

Michael Traynor. .......c.vuieiiniiii it 4

0101 (George Melton); 0102 (George Melton); 0106
(George Melton); 0210 (Bobby Dean)

Tom Turbiville. ... 1
0106 (Cook)

April TUIMET .. ..o e 1
0204 (Waitress)

April C. TUIMeT ..ot 1
0204 (Waitress)

Victor TUrner. ... ..ot 1

0203 (Corrections Officer)

Michael Vartan ............ooviviiiiinininininininenenen.. 1
0303 (Forrest)

Jonathan Velazquez................ccoviiiiiiiiiniien.. 1
0103 (Skater 2)

AL Vicente. ..ottt i 1

0202 (Dr. Norman Ackborn)

Jake Austin Walker ..ot i, 6
0101 (Jared Talbot); 0102 (Jared Talbot); 0103 (Jared
Talbot); 0104 (Jared Talbot); 0105 (Jared Tal-
bot); 0106 (Jared Talbot)

0101 (Marcy); 0102 (Marcy); 0103 (Marcy); 0106
(Marcy); 0201 (Marcy); 0206 (Marcy); 0301 (Marcy);
0304 (Marcy); 0305 (Marcy)

TIM Ware .. ..o e e 2
0203 (Dr. Perlmutt); 0206 (Dr. Perlmutt)

Veronica Warner .........o.vvvniiiiiiinienneennennnnn. 1
0401 (Shopper)

Kevin Wayne..........coooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiinnnn., 1
0106 (Junior Guard)

Ricky Wayne. ..ot 4

0402 (Carlton Myles); 0404 (Carlton Myles); 0405
(Carlton Myles); 0406 (Carlton Myles)

John Boyd West ..o 6

0103 (Melvin); 0302 (Melvin); 0303 (Melvin); 0304
(Melvin); 0305 (Melvin); 0403 (Melvin)

Red West. ... 1
0206 (Taylor)

Libby Whitemore ..........c.o.oiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiaeanns 1
0104 (Fellow Shopper)

Derek WilSOom .. ..oovviiii it 2

0104 (Kent Benny); 0204 (Kent Benny)

Suellen Yates . ...ouuuiiii i 1
0206 (Gaines’ Daughter)
L-Warren Young ..........cooviiiiiiiiiiiiiiinininnnan, 2

0106 (Senior Guard); 0210 (Prison Guard)

Matthew ZUuK.......cooiiiii e 1
0401 (Man)

72



	Season 1
	Always There
	Sexual Peeling
	Modern Times
	Plato's Cave
	Drip, Drip
	Jacob's Ladder


	Season 2
	Running With the Bull
	Sleeping Giants
	Charlie Darwin
	Donald the Normal
	Act as If
	MazelTov
	Weird as You
	The Great Destroyer
	Until You're Blue
	Unhinged


	Season 3
	Hoorah
	Thrill Ride
	Sown With Salt
	Girl Jesus
	The Future
	The Source


	Season 4
	A House Divided
	Yolk
	Bob & Carol & Ted Jr & Alice
	Go Ask Roger
	Pineapples in Paris
	Physics
	Happy Unburdening
	All I'm Sayin'


	Actor Appearances

